Public Document Pack

Havering

ALTBERTYR LONDON BOROUGH

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
WE ARE FESTIVAL DAMYNS HALL

AGENDA
Monday Council Chamber -
10.30 am 1 October 2012 Town Hall

Members 3: Quorum 2
COUNCILLORS:

Peter Gardner (Chairman)
Frederick Thompson
Denis Breading

For information about the meeting please contact:
Richard Cursons
richard.cursons@havering.gov.uk




Licensing Sub-Committee, 1 October 2012

AGENDA ITEMS

1 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE AND ANNOUNCEMENT OF SUBSTITUTE
MEMBERS

(if any) - receive
2 DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTERESTS

Members are invited to disclose any pecuniary interest in any of the items on the
agenda at this point of the meeting.

Members may still disclose any pecuniary interest in an item at any time prior to the
consideration of the matter.

3 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENT

The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or other
events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation.

4 REPORT OF THE CLERK (Pages 1 - 6)
5 REPORT OF THE LICENSING OFFICER (Pages 7 - 122)
Application for a premises licence made by Continental Drifts Limited under section

17 of the Licensing Act 2003.

lan Buckmaster
Committee Administration & Member Support
Manager



_ Agenda ltem 4
&¢ Havering

e LONDON BOROUGH

LICENSING REPORT
SUB-COMMITTEE

1 October 2012

Subject Heading: Procedure for the Hearing: Licensing
Act 2003

Report Author and contact details: Richard Cursons (01708) 432430
e-mail: richard.cursons@havering.gov.uk

Members are advised that, when considering application for a premises licence,
the following options are available to them by virtue of the Licensing Act 2003, Part
3, section 35, paragraphs 3 and 4:

"Where relevant representations are made, the authority must

(a) hold a hearing to consider them, unless the authority, the applicant and
each person who has made such representations agree that a hearing is
unnecessary, and

(b) having regard to the representations, take such steps as it considers
necessary for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

The steps are:
a) modify the conditions of the licence
b) reject the whole or part of the application

and for this purpose, the conditions of the licence are modified if any of them
is altered or omitted or any new condition is added."

The Sub-Committee will also wish to note that, if none of these steps is required,
the application must be granted.

Assuming that the Sub-Committee is satisfied that a hearing is required, then the
following procedural steps are recommended. The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings)
Regulations 2005 will govern the arrangements for the hearing of the application
now under consideration. This report accords with the requirements of that Act and
the Regulations, and in particular Regulations 21-25 (procedure at the hearing).

Page 1



1. Membership of the Sub-Committee:

1.1

1.2

The Sub-Committee comprises three members of the Licensing Committee,
with a quorum of two members. Unless there are objections, in the
absence of three members, the hearing shall proceed with the quorum
of two.

A members of the Licensing Committee will be excluded from hearing an

application where he or she:

1.2.1 has considered an application in respect of the premises in the
previous 12 months as a Member of the Regulatory Services
Committee; or

1.2.2 is a Ward Councillor for the Ward in which the premises, subject to
the application, are located; or

1.2.3 is a Ward Councillor for a Ward which is likely to be affected by the
application or;

1.2.4 has a personal interest in the application.

2. Roles of other participants:

2.1

2.2

The Legal Advisor is not a party to the hearing. The role of the Legal Advisor
is to provide legal advice relating to the application and submissions.

The Clerk is not a party to the hearing. The role of the Clerk is to record the
hearing and the decisions of the Sub-Committee, and ensure efficient
administration

3. Chairman’s Briefing meeting:

3.1

3.2

Prior to this hearing, the Sub-Committee Chairman will have met the Legal
Advisor and/or Clerk to determine whether further clarification is required of
any issues contained in the application or any representation.

During this preliminary meeting no decision will have been made or
discussion held regarding the substantive merits of the application or
representations.

4. Location and facilities:

4.1

4.2

All hearings will be heard at the Havering Town Hall unless otherwise
directed.

Interpreters will be provided by the Council on request, provided notice is
given at least five working days before the hearing.

Page 2



5. Notification of attendance:

5.1

The Chairman will enquire of the parties who is in attendance and the
parties will indicate their names (and, where relevant, whom they represent).
A register will be circulated before the commencement of the hearing on
which the applicant, his/her advisers and companions and all interested
parties (and/or their representatives) will be asked to record their
attendance.

6. Procedural matters:

6.1

6.2

Prior to the commencement of the hearing, the Chairman of the Sub-
Committee will orally inform the parties whether their applications to have
certain people attend the hearing (e.g. withesses) have been granted or
refused. Note this relates to people other than those attending on behalf of a
party in the capacity as a representative of the party.

Prior to the commencement of the hearing the Chairman of the Sub-
Committee will outline the procedure to be followed at the hearing. This will
normally be as follows:

Introduction of the application:

The Licensing officer will outline:

e details of the application and relevant representations received from the
parties;

e relevant legislation ;

e relevant Licensing Policy; and

e the time limit in which the Council must reach a determination.

Documentary evidence:

e Documentary or other information in support of applications,
representations or notices should be provided to the Clerk of the Sub-
Committee at least 7 clear working days before the hearing. If this
information is produced at the hearing it will only be taken into account
by the Sub-Committee if the Sub-Committee and all the parties consent
to its submission. Permission to have this information included in the
hearing should be requested at the beginning of the hearing before any
oral submissions have been made.

e Statements made by people in support of a party’s representation who
are not present at the hearing, must be signed by the maker, dated and
witnessed by another person. The statement must also contain the
witness’s full name and occupation.

Page 3



Representations:

The chairman will invite each of the parties at the hearing or their
representative sequentially to address the Sub-Committee and call any
person/s to whom permission has been granted to appear. Each party
will be allowed a maximum period of 10 minutes in which to address the
Sub-Committee and call persons on his/her behalf.

This 10 minute period is where each party has the opportunity to orally
address the Sub-Committee and clarify any points in which the Sub-
Committee has sought clarification prior to the hearing. This 10 minute
period should be uninterrupted unless a member of the Sub-Committee
or Legal Advisor considers that the speaker is making submissions that
are irrelevant, frivolous or vexatious.

Members of the Sub-Committee may ask questions of any party, at any
time during the proceedings. Time taken in dealing with a Member’s
question will not be taken into account in determining the length of time
available to the party in question to make their representation.

The sequence in which each of the parties will be invited to address the
Sub-Committee will normally be in the order of:

e the Chief Officer of Police;

the Fire Authority;

the Health and Safety at Work Enforcing Authority;

the Local Planning Authority;

the Local environmental Health Authority;

the Local Weights and Measures Authority;

the Authority Responsible for the Protection of Children from Harm,;

a navigation or other authority responsible for waterways; and

any other party that has submitted representations in respect of the

application, certificate, notice or other matter appearing before the

Sub-Committee;

e the party that has submitted the application, certificate, notice or
other matter appearing before the Sub-Committee.

At the discretion of the Sub-Committee the above order may be varied.

Cross-Examination:

Where witnesses have been permitted by the Sub-Committee to speak at
the hearing on behalf of a party, permission must be sought from the Sub-
Committee before another party can ask the witness questions. This
process of questioning is normally referred to as cross-examination. The
Sub-Committee will allow cross-examination only where it is necessary to
assist it in considering the representations or application.

Page 4



Relevance:

Information submitted at the hearing must be relevant to the applications,
representations, or notice and the promotion of the licensing objectives. The
Chairman of the Sub-Committee is entitled to exclude any information it
considers to be irrelevant whether presented in written or oral form. The
licensing objectives are:

The prevention of crime and disorder;
Public safety;

The prevention of public nuisance; and
The protection of children from harm.

7. Failure of parties to attend the hearing:

71

If a party, who has not given prior notice of his/her intention not to attend the
hearing, is absent from the hearing the Sub-Committee may either adjourn
the hearing or hold the hearing in the party’s absence. Where the hearing is
held in the absence of a party, the Sub-Committee will still consider the
application, representation or notice submitted by that party.

8. Adjournments and extension of time:

8.1

The Sub-Committee may adjourn a hearing to a specified date or extend a
notice period except where it must make a determination within certain time
limits in the following specific applications:

Applications for conversion of existing licences where the Sub-
Committee must make a determination within 2 months of the application
first being received. In default of a decision being made the application
will be treated as being granted;

Applications for variation of existing licences where the Sub-Committee
must make a determination within 2 months of the application first being
received. In default of a decision being made the application will be
treated as being rejected;

Applications for conversion of existing club certificates where the Sub-
Committee must make a determination within 2 months of the application
being first received. In default of a decision being made the application
will be treated as being granted;

Applications for variation of existing club certificates where the Sub-
Committee must make a determination within 2 months of the application
being first received. In default of a decision being made the application
will be treated as being rejected;

Applications made by holders of justices’ licences for personal licences
must be determined within 3 months of the application first being

Page 5



received. In default of a decision not being made within this period the
application will be treated as being granted;

e Review of premises licences following closure orders where the Sub-
committee must make a determination within 28 days of receiving notice
of the closure order.

9. Sub-Committee’s determination of the hearing:

9.1 At the conclusion of the hearing the Sub-Committee will deliberate in private
accompanied by the Clerk and the Legal Advisor who will be available to
assist the Sub-Committee with any legal problems but will not participate in
any decision making of the Sub-Committee.

9.2 The Sub-Committee will normally make its determination and announce its
decision at the end of the hearing.

9.3 Where all parties have notified the Sub-Committee that a hearing is not
required the Sub-Committee must make its determination within 10 working
days of being given notice that the hearing is not required.

10. Power to exclude people from hearing:

10.1 The public are entitled to attend the hearing as spectators. However, the
Sub-Committee may exclude any person from the hearing including any
person assisting or representing a party where:

e it considers that the public interest would be best served by excluding
the public or the individual person from the hearing; or

e that person is behaving in a disruptive manner. This may include a party
who is seeking to be heard at the hearing. In the case where a party is to
be excluded, the party may submit to the Sub-Committee in writing any
information which they would have been entitled to give orally had they
not been required to leave the hearing.

11. Recording of proceedings:

11.1 A written record of the hearing will be produced and kept for 6 years from
the date of the determination of the hearing.

12. Power to vary procedure:
12.1  The Sub-committee may depart from following any of the procedures set out

in this document if it considers the departure to be necessary in order to
consider an application, notice or representation.

Page 6



Section 1

Appendix 1

Appendix 2

Appendix 3

Appendix 4

Agenda Iltem 5

Licensing Sub-Committee

Licensing Officers Report
Copy of the Application
Map of local area
Representations

Representations from Responsible Authorities

Page 7



Licensing Sub-Committee

Section 1 - Licensing Officers Report

Page 8



Havering

amii: LONDON BOROUGH

S

LICENSING REPORT
SUB-COMMITTEE

0110 2012

Subject Heading: Premises Licence Application Damynes
Hall Aerodrome Aveley Road Upminster
RM14 2TN

Report Author and contact details: Paul Campbell — Licensing Officer
01708 432777
licensing@havering.gov.uk

This application for a premises licence is made by Continental Drifts Ltd
under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003. The application was received by
Havering’s Licensing Authority on 7" August 2012.

Geographical description of the area and description of the building
The premises are fields which lie to the west of Aveley Road next to a strip of land
used for light aircraft.

The premises are situated about 2.1 miles from Upminster train station by road
there are no public transport links to the venue. Most of the area surrounding the
fields is open land; there are several residential properties within the vicinity also
some commercial properties.

Maps of the area are attached to assist the committee.

Details of the application
The application is for 25" May 2013 to 26™ May 2013 only

Films, Live Music, Recorded Music, Performance of Dance, Provision of
facilities for making music and dancing.

Day Start Finish
Saturday 11:00hrs 02:30hrs
Late Night Refreshment,

Day Start Finish
Saturday 23:00hrs 02:30hrs
Supply of Alcohol.

Day Start Finish
Saturday 11:00hrs 02:00hrs

W:\data03\Public Protection\PPStafiPAUL CAMPBELL\Committee Reports\Damyns Hall 2.doc

Page 9



Licensing Sub-Committee, 1% October 2012

Seasonal variations & Non-standard timings
There are no seasonal variations or non-standard timings applied for in this
application.

Comments and observations on the application

The applicant acted in accordance with premises licence regulations 25 and 26
relating to the advertising of the application. The required newspaper
advertisement was installed in the Yellow Advertiser on Wednesday 15™ August
2012.

Agreement Reached
The police and the applicant have been in discussion and agreed a condition that
will be attached if a premises licence is granted and will read “that all polices

listed in the event management plan shall be adhered to.”

Summary
There was one valid representation against this application from interested parties.

There were no representations against this application from responsible
authorities.

Details of representations
Valid representations may only address the following licensing objectives:

The prevention of crime and disorder
The prevention of public nuisance
The protection of children from harm
Public safety

Interested parties’ representations
The interested parties representations fall mainly under the heading of the
prevention of public nuisance.

There were no representations from the following responsible authorities:

The Metropolitan Police

Public Health

The London Fire and Emergency Planning Authority
The Health & Safety Enforcing Authority

The Trading Standards Service

Planning Control & Enforcement

Children & Families Service

The Licensing Authority

The Health Authority

W:\data03\Public Protection\PPStafiPAUL CAMPBELL\Committee Reports\Damyns Hall 2.doc

Page 10



Paul Campbell

From: Licensing

Sent: 31 August 2012 10:11

To: Paul Campbell

Subject: FW: Damyns Hall Event 2013

From: Mel Wilds [mailto:mel@continentaldrifts.co.uk]
Sent: 30 August 2012 12:27

To: David-Anthony.Fern@met.police.uk; Licensing
Subject: Re: Damyns Hall Event 2013

Hi

Please see below from the police- we fully agree with this condition
Kind regards

Mel

Sent from my iPhone

On 30 Aug 2012, at 12:19, "David-Anthony.Fern@met.police.uk" <David-Anthony.Fern@met.police.uk>

wrote:

Mel,

I will purpose a condition on the licence that all polices listed in the event management
plan shall be adhered to.

If you agree with this statement please email licensing@havering.gov.uk stating you agree
with the above condition, and copy me into the reply.

Any issues please contact me ASAP, have to say one of the best event plans I have ever
read, especially concerning the sale of alcohol.

David

PC 118 KD - DAVID FERN

Police Licensing Officer| Borough of Havering
Telephone 01708 432781 or 07825 735383

Email David-Anthony.Fern@met.police.UK

zJAddress Romford Police Station, 19 Main Road, Romford, RM1 3BJ
METLINE 712801

From: Mel Wilds [mailto:mel@continentaldrifts.co.uk]
Sent: 21 August 2012 12:35

To: Fern David - KD

Subject: RE: Damyns Hall Event 2013

Page 11



Hi David

I hope you had a lovely weekend

Please find attached a draft alcohol management plan

This will be developed in later copies of the plan and we will happily take on any feedback or
comments the police have.

Many thanks

Mel Wilds

From: David-Anthony.Fern@met.police.uk [mailto:David-Anthony.Fern@met.police.uk]
Sent: 16 August 2012 12:26

To: Mel Wilds

Subject: Damyns Hall Event 2013

Mel,

I have just read through the event management plan and have a couple of
questions.

The Alcohol management plan, I would like to see a copy of this, is the document
ready to read?

ID - over 18's event, will ID be requested for every person who appears under 25?
What advertising will there be for this condition of entry?
How will this be enforced? Refusal of admission without ID etc..

David

PC 118 KD - DAVID FERN

Police Licensing Officer| Borough of Havering
Telephone 01708 432781 or 07825 735383

Email David-Anthony.Fern@met.police.UK
[=z]IAddress Romford Police Station, 19 Main Road, Romford, RM1 3BJ

Total Policing is the Met's commitment to be on the streets and in your communities to
catch offenders, prevent crime and support victims. We are here for London, working with
you to make our capital safer.

Consider our environment - please do not print this email unless absolutely necessary.

NOTICE - This email and any attachments may be confidential, subject to copyright and/or legal
privilege and are intended solely for the use of the intended recipient. If you have received this
email in error, please notify the sender and delete it from your system. To avoid incurring legal
liabilities, you must not distribute or copy the information in this email without the permission of
the sender. MPS communication systems are monitored to the extent permitted by law.
Consequently, any email and/or attachments may be read by monitoring staff. Only specified
personnel are authorised to conclude any binding agreement on behalf of the MPS by email. The
MPS accepts no responsibility for unauthorised agreements reached with other employees or
agents. The security of this email and any attachments cannot be guaranteed. Email messages
are routinely scanned but malicious software infection and corruption of content can still occur
during transmission over the Internet. Any views or opinions expressed in this communication are

2

Page 12



solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of the Metropolitan Police
Service (MPS).

Find us at:

Facebook: Facebook.com/metpoliceuk

Twitter: @metpoliceuk

Total Policing is the Met's commitment to be on the streets and in your communities to catch
offenders, prevent crime and support victims. We are here for London, working with you to make
our capital safer.

Consider our environment - please do not print this email unless absolutely necessary.

NOTICE - This email and any attachments may be confidential, subject to copyright and/or legal priviiege
and are intended solely for the use of the intended recipient. If you have received this email in error,
please notify the sender and delete it from your system. To avoid incurring legal liabilities, you must not
distribute or copy the information in this email without the permission of the sender. MPS communication
systems are monitored to the extent permitted by law. Consequently, any email and/or attachments may
be read by monitoring staff. Only specified personnel are authorised to conclude any binding agreement
on behalf of the MPS by email. The MPS accepts no responsibility for unauthorised agreements reached
with other employees or agents. The security of this email and any attachments cannot be guaranteed.
Email messages are routinely scanned but malicious software infection and corruption of content can still
occur during transmission over the Internet. Any views or opinions expressed in this communication are
solely those of the author and do not necessarily represent those of the Metropolitan Police Service
(MPS).

Find us at:

Facebook: Facebook.com/metpoliceuk

Twitter: @metpoliceuk

Page 13



Licensing Sub-Committee

Appendix 1 - Copy of the Application

Page 14



Havering

amiic LONDON BOROUGH

Application for a ﬁremises licence to be granted
under the Licensing Act 2003

PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST

Before completing this form please read the Guidance Notes at the end of the form. If you are

completing this form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers
are inside the boxes and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary. You may wish to keep
a copy of the completed form for your records.

inge
[Insert name(s) of applicant]

CornoTIvEASTAC DRIFTS (0D vl

apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the
premises described in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this
application to you as the relevant licensing authority in accordance with section 12
of the Licensing Act 2003

Part 1 — Premises details

Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or description

Damyns Hall Aerodrome
Aveley Road

Upminster

Essex

RM14 2TN

Post town Post code

Upminster RM14 2TN v

Telephone number at premises (if any) T. 01708 556000
M. 07775 742582

Non-domestic rateable value of premises

Band E- £125,001 +
Part 2 - Applicant details

Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as
Please tick v'yes

a) an individual or individuals* 1 please complete section (A)

b) aperson other than an individual* 0
i. asalimited company yes please complete section (B) .
ii. asa partnership 0 Please complete section (B)

Public Protection Bringing together Environmental Health & Trading Standards

LAPRO1.doc - Requests/078865/PJJ04727 1

Page 15



iii. as an unincorporated association, or 0 please complete section (B)
iv. other (for example a statutory corporation) 0 please complete section (B)

Page 16



c) a recognised club i
d) a charity 0
e) the proprietor of an educational establishment 0
fy a health service body 0]
g) aperson who is registered under Part 2 of the Care 1
Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an independent
hospital
h) the chief officer of police of a police force in England and ]

Wales

*If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm:

| am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business
which involves the use of the premises for licensable activities; or
| am making the application pursuant to a

statutory function, or

o a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)

Mr O a

Mrs Miss Ms 0

Surname First names

please complete section (B)
Please complete section (B)
Please complete section (B)

Please complete section (B)

Please complete section (B)

Please complete section (B)

Please tick vyes

0

=
a

Other title
(for example, Rev)

I am 18 years old or over

Please tick v'yes

O

Current postal
address if
different from
premises address

Post Town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

Page 17




SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (IF APPLICABLE)

Mr Mrs [ Miss [ Ms 7] Other title ]

(for example, Rev)

Surname First names

Please tick v'yes
I am 18 years old or over O

Current postal
address if
different from
premises address

Post Town Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

E-mail address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS

Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please give any
registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporate),
please give the name and address of each party concerned

Name
Continental Drifts Ltd

Address

Business Barge Judith
Hale Wharf

Ferry Lane

Tottenham Hale
London

N17 9NF

Registered number (where applicable)
3213484

Description of applicant (for example partnership, company, unincorporated association etc)
Limited company

Telephone number (if any) 0208 365 9555

E-mail address (optional)
mel @ continentaldrifts.co.uk

Page 18




Part 3 Operating Schedule

Day Month Year
When do you want the premises licence to start? 21510512 1|0 1|1 I3
Day Month Year
If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when (2 16 |0 |5 |2 |0 |1 |3
do you want it to end?

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any one time, 14,999
please state the number expected to attend

Please give a general description of the premises (please read Guidance Note1)
The premises is a part of Damyns Aerodrome, it is a large field area, surrounded by trees/
open land and is adjacent to the aerodrome with its plane storage and flying facilities.

Page 19



What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?
(Please see sections 1 and 14 of the Licensing Act 2003 and Schedule 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act Please

Please tick v'yes

Provision of requlated entertainment

a)  plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A) |
b) films (if ticking yes, fill in box B) Y
c) indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C) 0
d) boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D) O
e) live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E) Y
f) recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F) Y
g) performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G) Y
h) anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) 0
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)
Provision of entertainment facilities for:
i) making music (if ticking yes, fill in box I) Y
i) dancing (if ticking yes, fill in box J) b4
k) entertainment of a similar description to that falling within (i) or (j) 0
(if ticking yes, fill in box K)
Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box L) Y
Supply of aleohol (if ticking yes, fill in box M) Y

In all cases complete boxes N, O and P

Page 20



A

Plays Will the performance of a play take place Thdoors

Standard days and timings | indoors or outdoors or both —

(please read Guidance Note 6) Outdoors

lease tick [v'] (please read Guidance Note 2).

Day Start Finish P M ) Both

Mon Please give further details here (please read Guidance Note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read Guidance Note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the performance of
plays at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
Guidance Note 5)

Sat

Sun

B
Films ' Will the exhibition of films take place indoors | |,400rs

Standard days and timings

or outdoors or both —

(please read Guidance Note 6) Outdoors
lease tick [v] (please read Guidance Note 2).

Day Start Finish P 1{p ) Both X

Mon Please give further details here (please read Guidance Note 3)
There will be Video jockeys and large screens as part of the main stage and secondary
stage performances, these will play a variety of images

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please read Guidance Note 4)
NA

Thur

Fri Non standard timinas. Where you intend to use the premises for the exhibition of films
at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
Guidance Note 5)

Sat 11.00 | 02.30

Sun

Page 21



C

Indoor sporting events
Standard days and timings
(please read Guidance Note 6)

Please give further details here (please read Guidance Note 3)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue
State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please read Guidance Note 4)

Wed

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for indoor sporting
events at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list (please
read Guidance Note 5)

Sat

Sun

D

Boxing or wrestling Will the boxing or wrestling entertainment T

entertainment take place indoors or outdoors or both —

Standard days and timings Odoots

(please read Guidance Note 6) please tick [v'] (please read Guidance Note2).

Day Start Finish Both

Mon Please qgive further details here (please read Guidance Note 3)

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling entertainment (please read
Guidance Note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for boxing and wrestlin
entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read Guidance Note 5)

Sat

Sun

Page 22




E

Live music

Standard days and timings

Will the performance of live music take place | q00rs
indoors or outdoors or both —

(please read Guidance Note 6) Outdoors
lease tick [v] (please read Guidance Note 2),
Day Start Finish P 1 ) Both X
Mon Please give further details here (please read Guidance Note 3)
There will be live bands playing in the larger arenas and on the main stage
Tue
Wed State any seasonal variations for performing of live music (please read Guidance Note
4)
NA
Thur
Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the performance of
live music at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list (please
read Guidance Note 5)
sat 11,00 [02.30 |
Sun
s
F 4

Recorded music

Standard days and timings

Will the playing of recorded music take place | |400rs
indoors or outdoors or both -

{please read Guidance Note 6) Qutdoors
, lease tick [v'] (please read Guidance Note 2).

Day Start Finish P it ) Both X

Mon Please give further details here (please read Guidance Note 3)
There will be DJs playing from all of the sound areas on the site

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for playing recorded music (please read Guidance Note 4)
NA

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the playing recorded
music entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please
list (please read Guidance Note 5)

Sat 11.00 [02.30 |NA

Sun

Page 23




G

Performance of dance Will the performance of dance take place Indoors

Standard days and timings | indoors or outdoors or both —

(please read Guidance Note 6) Outdoors

lease tick [v] (please read Guidance Note 2).

Day Start Finish P M ) Both s

Mon Please give further details here (please read Guidance Note 3)
There will be dance performances on stages around the site

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for performing of dance (please read Guidance Note 4)
NA

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the performance of
dance entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please
list (please read Guidance Note 5)

Sat 11.00 [02.30 |NA

Sun

H

Anything of a similar
description to that falling
within (e), (f) or (g)
Standard days and timings
(please read Guidance Note 6)

Please aive a description of the type of the entertainment you will be
providing

Day Start Finish Will this entertainment take place indoors or Indoors
outdoors or both . Outdoors
Mon please tick [v] (please read Guidance Note 2)
Both
Please give further details here (please read Guidance Note 3)
Tue
Wed
State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar description to that falling
Thur within (e), (f) or {(g) (please read Guidance Note 4
Fri
Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the entertainment of
Sat similar description to that falling within (e).(f) or (q) at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read Guidance Note 5)
Sun

Page 24




Provision of facilities for
making music

Standard days and timings
(please read Guidance Note 6)

Please give a description of the type of the entertainment you will be
providing

Day Start Finish Will the facilities for making music be indoors | Indoors
y or outdoors or both oA
on
please tick [v'] (please read Guidance Note 2) Both X
Please give further details here (please read Guidance Note 3)
Tue Sound installations and music workshops on offer
Wed
State any seasonal variations for the provision of facilities for making music) (please
Thur read Guidance Note 4)
NA
Fri
11.00 | 02.30 Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for provision of facilities
Sat - - for making music entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read Guidance Note 5)
NA
Sun
J <
Provision of facilities for | Will the facilities for dancing be indoors or Indoors
dancing outdoors or both —
Standard dayg and timings _ _ Outdoors
(please read Guidance Note 6) please tick [v] (please read Guidance Note 2):
Day Start Finish Both X
Mon Please give further details here (please read Guidance Note 3)
Much of the music played at the event will be dance music and it is anticipated that there will
be dancing in all areas of the event site
Tue
Wed State any seasonal variations for providing dancing facilities (please read Guidance
Note 4)
NA
Thur
Fri Non standard timings. Where vou intend to use the premises for the provision of
facilities for dancing entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read Guidance Note 5)
Sat 11.00 | 02.30 | M
Sun

11
Page 25




!

Provision of facilities for
entertainment of a similar
description to that falling
within (j) or (k)

Standard days and timings
(please read Guidance Note 6)

Please give a description of the type of the entertainment you will be
providing

Day Start Finish Will the facilities for making music be Indoors
i indoors or outdoors or both @il
on
please tick [] (please read Guidance Note 2), | Both
Please give further details here (please read Guidance Note 3)
Tue
Wed
State any seasonal variations for the provision of facilities for entertainment of a
Thur similar description to that falling within (j) or (K) (please read Guidance Note 4)
Fri
Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for provision of facilities
Sat for making music entertainment at different times to those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read Guidance Note 5)
Sun
L

Late night refreshment
Standard days and timings

Will the provision of late night refreshment | |,qo0rs

take place indoors or outdoors or both -

(please read Guidance Note 6) Outdoars
lease tick [v'] (please read Guidance Note 2).

Day Start Finish P 1P ) Both X

Mon Please give further details here (please read Guidance Note 8)
There will be a number of hot food caterers operating on the event site, these will also sell
tea and coifee

Tue

Wed State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night refreshments (please read
Guidance Note 4)

Thur

Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the provision of late
night refreshment at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list
(please read Guidance Note 5)

Sat 23.00 | 02.30

Sun

Page 26




M

Supply of dicoRol Will the supply of alcohol be for On the x
Standard days and timings | €onsumption (p)rf?r;r;]l:es

(please read Guidance Note 6)

please tick [v] (please read Guidance Note 7), |PLEMISes

Day Start Finish Both
Mon Please give further details here (please read Guidance Note 4)

- We Are Festival will have a number of bar outlets on the event site
Tue
Wed State any seasonal variations on the supply of alcohol {please read Guidance Note 4)

LT —— 3 —— NA

Thur
Fri Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the supply of alcohol

at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
Guidance Note5)

Sat 11,00 [ 02.00 | NA

Sun

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as
premises supervisor

Name ...Melanie Jayne Wilds
L R R R N R R R R A e LA A R A R R L R N Ry e T A R SO SRt
Address  ............ 121 Fyfield Rd, Walthamstow
L S N R I R D R R L R R R R P P P L Ry TP Ty ™ 2P
“hw
Postcode  ............... AT BRE nusspssirs st s st ol e s e sas s el s s U e e o s SV s e .

Personal Licence number (if known) Z01N1049BL/A
Issuing licensing authority (if known) Waltham Forest

N

Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or
matters ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of
children (please read Guidance Note 8)

This is an over 18’s event

13
Page 27




0

Hours premises are open | State any seasonal variation (please read Guidance Note 4)) NA

to the public
Standard days and timings
(please read Guidance Note 6)

Day Start Finish

Mon

Tue

Wed Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises to open to the public-at
deferent times from those listed in the column on the left, please list (please read
Guidance Note 5)

Thur NA

Fri

Sat  111.00 [02.30

Sun

P

Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:
a) General - all four licensing objectives (b,c,d,e) (please read Guidance Note 9)

We Are Festival is being managed by experienced event contractor Continental Drifts who are applying for this
license. Continental Drifts have experience in a wide range of events and take their responsibilities to each event very
seriously. Continental Drifts have employed highly experienced contractors for the event and will liaise with Havering
council and emergency services throughout the planning process to ensure a joined up approach to multi agency
warking. Continental Drifts have an excellent team of site staff and suppliers who they will bring to the event.
Continental Drifts has been in operation for 17 years, the company organise events for many London councils and
private organisations and fully understand their responsibilities under the premises license objectives. Continental
Drifts will operate an Emergency Liaision team on site. This will consist of key people within the event- First Aid,
Police, Security, event managers, health and safety. This team will meet at regular intervals to review the event and
make any changes as needed.

b) The prevention of crime and disorder

Continental Drifts have employed specialist security contractor SB security to work on this event, SBs credits include
Secret Garden Party, LolliBop Festival, Wilderness Festival, Carnaval del Pueblo, Luton Carnival and many others.
There will be a full search at all entry gates to include metal arches, bag searches and pat downs. We will liaise
throughout the planning of the event with Police and will have a level of police presence (detalil tbc) at the event site.
The event will have clear conditions of entry- No glass bottles, No Alcohol to be brought onto site, No illega! drugs, No
weapons of any kind, Antisocial behaviour will not be tolerated, organisers reserve the right to refuse admission

No bands or artists will be booked that will be anticipated to attract anti-social elements to the event and a form 696
will be filled out for all artists at the event. Within the event will be static and roaming security aswell as perimeter
security.

Shuttle buses will take people to and from the train stations to avoid dwell time in the local area.

Page 28




c¢) Public safety

There will be a joined up approach between all agencies, experienced security contractors at the event site and a first
aid presence throughout. Site maps will be gridded with clear RV poinis to allow speedy access for emergency
vehicles or location of casualties if needed. There will be a welfare/chill out space on the site and we have in place a
vulnerable persons policy for those who may need assistance. The site will be designed to ensure it does not prevent
hazards to those attending, Meausres in place for this include but are not limited to; regular waste disposal, fire
provision in place, trip hazards avoided, sound levels kept to safe levels, site designed to avoid pinch points, roaming
and static security. Search regime and cledr entry conditions. Traffic measures on approach to event.

15
Page 29




d) The prevention of public nuisance

Continental Drifts will work closely with technical suppliers to minimise disruption to local residents from the
festival and will ensure that the event production schedule specifies deliveries/ collections from the site between
8am and 8pm where possible . A noise management plan is being prepared by specialist contractor Vanguardia
as part of the Event Management Plan. Programming and placement of sound sources will be undertaken with
consideration for residents in the vicinity of the event. Sound systems will be selected for ability to create focused
sound with minimal bleed. Outdoor music will finish at 11pm, marquees operating after this time will be positioned
to ensure minimum sound bleed and will have acoustic screening around the rear.

Shuttle buses will operate from the site to minimise dwell time in the area. A robust traffic plan will be developed
for the event by specialist contractor SEP events who will also manage the on-site car park.

A direct hotline to the site management team will be operational from 8am to 9pm for the duration of the set up
and breakdown of the event and until 3am on the day of the event.

e) The protection of children from harm

This is an over 18’s event. This will be advertised in advance.

CHECKLIST
Please tick v'yes

* | have made or enclosed payment of the fee Y
s [ have enclosed the plan of the premises

e | have you sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities
and others where applicable

* | have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual | wish to be premises
supervisor, if applicable

= | understand that | must now advertise my application

< < < =< <

» |l understand that if | do not comply with the above requirements my application will
be rejected

IT IS AN OFFENCE, LIABLE ON CONVICTION TO A FINE UP TO LEVEL 5 ON THE
STANDARD SCALE, UNDER SECTION 158 OF THE LICENSING ACT 2003 TO MAKE
A FALSE STATEMENT IN OR IN CONNECTION WITH THIS APPLICATION

Part 5 — Signatures (please read Guidance Note 10)

Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent. (See Guidance Note
11) If signing on behalf of the.gapplicant please state in what capacity.

Signature ..

Capacity -Ap

Page 30




For joint applications signature of 2nd applicant or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other authorised agent.
(please read Guidance Note12) If signing on behalf of the applicant please state in what capacity.

Signature s Date _isvraumvddisysmiams i sy

Capacity ugur. gt i S e St s TR

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with
this application (please read Guidance Note 13)

Post town Post code

Telephone number (if any)

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail your e-mail address (optional)

Guidance Notes

1, Describe the premises. For example the type of premises, its general situation and layout and any
other information which could be relevant to the licensing objectives. Where your application includes
off-supplies of alcohol and you intend to provide a place for consumption of these off-supplies you
must include a description of where the place will be and its proximity to the premises.

2, Where taking place in a building or other structure please tick as appropriate. Indoors may include a
tent.

3. For example the type of activity to be authorised, if not already stated, and give relevant further
details, for example (but not exclusively) whether or not music will be amplified or unamplified.

4. For example (but not exclusively), where the activity will occur on additional days during the summer
months.

5. For example (but not exclusively), where you wish the activity to go on longer on a particular day i.e.

Christmas Eve.

6. Please give timings in 24 hour clock (e.g. 16:00) and only give details for the days of the week when
you intend the premises to be used for the activity.

7. If you wish people to be able to consume alcohol on the premises please tick on, if you wish people
to be able to purchase alcohol to consume away from the premises please tick off. If you wish people
to be able to do both please tick both.

8. Please give information about anything intended to occur at the premises or ancillary to the use of the
premises which may give rise to concern in respect of children, regardiess of whether you intend
children to have access to the premises, for example (but not exclusively) nudity or semi-nudity, films
for restricted age groups, the presence of gaming machines.

9. Please list here steps you will take to promote all four licensing objectives together.
10. The application form must be signed.
11. A applicant’s agent (for example solicitor) may sign the form on their behalf provided that they have

actual authority to do so.

12. Where there is more than one applicant, both applicants or their respective agents must sign the
application form.

13. This is the address which we shall use to correspond with you about this application.

17
Page 31




Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

Consent of individual to being specified as premises supervisor

Melanie Jayne Wilds
[full name of prospective premises supervisor]

Of 121 Fyfield Rd
Walthamstow
E17 3RE

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

[Home address of prospective premises supervisor]

Hereby confirm that | give my consent to be specified as the designated premises
supervisor in relation to the application for

We Are Festival
[type of application]

By

Continental Drifts Lid
[name of applicant]

relating to a premises licence ....., ,
[number of existing licence, if any]

T eTCARAN IS PAGCTCI NI NI I F L0 AN EFARKAVE YR I IS T EF AU P U SO S HY FAA S E VR

for

Damyns Hall Aerodrome
Aveley Road

Upminster

Essex

RM14 2TN

.........................................................................................................................

[name and address of premises to which the application relates]

Page 32



-2-

and any premises licence to be granted or varied in respect of this application made by

Continental Drifts Ltd
[name of applicant]

concerning the supply of alcohol at

Damyns Hall Aerodrome
Aveley Road

Upminster

Essex

RM14 2TN

D R S R I R R I R T R O Y

[name and address of premises to which application relates]

| also confirm that | am applying for, intend to apply for or currently hold a personal
licence, details of which | set out below.

Personal licence number

Z01N1049BL/A
[insert personal licence number, if any]

Personal licence issuing authority

Waltham Forest

[insert name and address and telep number of personal licence issuing authority, if any]

Signed

Name Melanie Jayne Wilds
[please print]

Date 2™ August 2012

All correspondence to be sent to :

The Licensing Section

Housing & Public Protection
London Borough of Havering
Mercury House, Mercury Gardens
Romford, Essex RM1 3SL

Page 33

19



Appendix 18- Draft site map

Appendix 19— Traders list- to follow

Appendix 20- Alcohol management plan

1. Basic Operating Structure

Page 34



TO ADVERTISE TELEPHONE BASILDON (01268) 503400

SYHAV

www.ysllowadvartiser-today.co.uk

Havering Yellow Advettiser, Wednesday, August 15, 2012 37

ARGMN Ans oven £100
Call 01268 503 400

Recrultment: 01268 503 420
Classified: 01268 503 430
Maonday-Thursday 8.00-5.30
Fri day 8.00-5.00

Calls may be monitored

Yellow
Acorn
Great Oaks, Basildon,

Esss

Advertiser
House

$S14 1AH

01268 503 418
01268 503 419
101268 503 455

Baslidon

| Pop Into our town centre office
Monday-Thursday 9.00-5.30

Friday 9.00-5.00 .
Acomn House, Great Daks

‘churgo £9,00 « 9,00am-5.00pm

CONDITIONS OF ACCEPTANCE |

FOR ALL ADVERTISEMENTS
mnmm nmmnnmm

Public Motices
BUPERN|

Llﬂlmnmﬂumdh
< hllnlwwh

t i

o psted ¥ iy 4 mm hm?nmuwa
Wil i of inet B 00 crys, e any decoesy
mmmt:mmmuum

Bresch ol

l-willm thN
m-«udna' ' accordanes Wi T Gy Court ACY 1084
14, Wi ¢ buchs | e 3 et

L X
Fugect b W sppenied
-m;‘mu mq.mm:‘ﬁ:u

%
3
i

E%i

T

i

=
3
-4
b

i
il

!
i
i
i
i

s

i
i
i
i
i
|

5 g =83
et

]l'
]
i
§
E
f
: 3
i
E
|
g
i
7

ek
i At w9
aq:mdumul:h‘ah

1

Search:No More

SellfFind Yolr. Bargains ihuhl Here

| el arr[zlnouuhold Itamg .
iy

il

Telephone:
0905 624 0595

Calla cost £1.02 por min from a BT Lendiios, other
va:;m amlaombo

s,..'.,',""""" efde of Praciioe b NOTICE OF AFFLICATION FOR A PREMISES
1 Advwacey by betaplad ol P condioes Bt () nbewg|  LICENCE UNDER wg‘ggu.u OF THE LICENSING
' pocds w oo b of D Tewde
APPLICANT: CONTINENTAL DRIFTS LTD
mx PREMISES: DAMYNSG HALL ABRODROME, AVELEY ROAD,
s | e The proposed lieensable m“% Tha sala ol abéckel, phtylog
LS al r
ftigeree] Tive s, ’ma s, p:ﬂurm of damca, :
nﬂgmumﬁwﬁ;ofﬂlﬂmmdm‘mm 1 hom £ Thres boys
5 ancy e o Llm on ke 20 by 201315 200 00 04 movslain Ekae, | 2014 24M]
¥ ) Whasis, axs coad, o £25. Tet
A Zanry. Fulf detsiln of the can; 1 the adibren 3
[ pleliyivis wml W"‘”“ 01264 707 944, /
| Prrpcaeicy = THAEE FACK.
£ =¥ ET} L .
| e erfeing ol ai
o : ! Sueh -eprest " ;mm by m““m,r..%&'&
ﬂmmumnmuhw et o Oy [ ety o -l be is witi hb oy ')
7, - = Sq:whm zm iary o w“bhehh Q278 NE London
) ™ duﬂz satiog. the ﬂ'ﬂmuorn
: umu s

mmwmzﬂ-m
TV STAND btack gleas,  Gless
fwo door ont, ona shed, coat
m.mmmﬂo
2 T80, fiew, coal £, occept
220, Tak: (00 BA04 0530,
ARCTIC
FLEECRD

§§

5
i
%g

Bargain Buys

’2_-;;6
R

i

i

B

3

. EWUAMING
POOL NON-SLIP BTEFS, £30,
Tet: 61708 745550,

TOBHIBAS 3F TV, CAT

Mhuh

Peaced colier, lwme
yery wanmn, ideal fshing
oond, T35, Tei: NE London 0208
StITE.

—mn
U
‘tﬂ'“

SEEfefoem

whesis, froe £3
o108 TeTEs
EXERCISE BIKE DOMYDS

‘“r'n-hn«h'l.w;_u

mum\lnﬂnﬁm

Al sorvican, which

WAL AR Ny

abytand e,
£S5 SAMSUNG 37" FLAT
BCAEEN LED TV £00. 4 WAIT:
maiunvmmcams

-8 s pped Labde, 30,
Pladoa ring Tak: 01702 335 167
ED runner /

Page 35

wicdor, - oxcofent | piiurs | &
wound, T20 oo, Nm:’??ﬂ!

B

VANITY UNIT FREE-STAND.

boand, mouse, e 3
Bad-up; D64 Tek 07705 303291
3 Fool Ankmal Hitch £20 Goid
brideamaid

dres wim
scuthend Tak’ 07065 450 G1¥

25

DOUDLE BED| DIVAN plus
headboord & wprung matives,

oed sa eccauonal guest bad,
e, D00, Toke 01702 857 280

8527 QOBY atiae {25

IKEA GOPFEE TABLE glass |
shil undemesth, H 5.

w18 2 W70 e vgs £40 Tk
o708 M2

THEA uonaﬁ TABLE ul-u
uncdernestti, H

tonped; sheil
xL ilux\'l?ﬂmwnm'l&.

0170 342 264
KOOAK 30KL C
borew been

PINE TABLE 38° x 59"

fogs rmove lor u-wg
o conditicn Tk

nxpebant | t
+| 07600 891 23

Double mattmas B0 x 4N,
mam, £ Tal - G708 451

3 FDOT AMIMAL HUTCH €20 00

Fyphema, I,
Iboxad, ntroctions, £5 onty. Tet
O7951 84T TOT.

BENCH - SAW  powsrful,
D0ona  FISHING  GEAR.
Incleing nit, rods. box,
Ledona et 0168 263062

CARAVAN PORCH AWMING
with cartaind ‘A shest

o
L3 x’,m B0 ono - Tet 01702

580 ?
COHATTO DOUBLE DUOOY
dark ek nomyina, rRnCOv,
heed. supoors, Wi
s, 070, Yok 01208 a5370.
DINING - TADLE LIGHT OAK
A3 dismater, estending | to
S5 £25- TV st £10. Tk
OI702 548 1D,

i, oo cond, B85 WiHEELIE
N, 15 Tek: 01702 BS7207,

M\HTEO‘I‘HAI.EII.XWW,

CARPET. CLEANERA s oo,
£30 Tok 01702 201 646

FULL S7E ACOUSTIC SOLU-
THONS KEYBOARD ©X T
0 6504 6580,

HOTPOINT UPRIGHT FREEZ-

IR ioad charmird, erparn, 28
Tob 01377 asazeT

priced, may be rak:
e Mt wthoud Lol Tek 01702
@0

T
541001, 01708 363435

Wod QP37 1st

MWD



Licensing Sub-Committee

Appendix 2 - Map of local area

Page 36



o > : '-\_llll
7 rad
P }

g 7 \

/ ff'{ !

e .\“ / i

A ol 1

,;}:-;.j \'\_

7 I"‘.

Z i\ K I \

/ 1 b I\ |

We Are Festival Map Reference: TQ5583NE /IP
7 T T — Scale @ A4 1:4000 Scale
- ord
nipg:7z W= __OIS g Date: 04/09/2012 40 80 120 160 200 m
Bl SEMERE| Licsnsed Pariner
j London Borough of Havering © Crown copyright and database rights 2012 Ordnance Survey
H ave rl nq Town Hall, Main Road 100024327
Romford, RM1 3BD gl
wmi LONDON BOROUGH Tel: 01708 434343 Page 37




Licensing Sub-Committee

Appendix 3 - Representations

Page 38



2L Y 20 T M
\ \Dw QQH&

rf.'- e ﬁmh.b oQ

M\M&C,ok&’
. O3] 0 3
ot O ko PST)e ““fﬁ%www

o Conckiie wa

\Q\Mv-a, PP W \5 e \c\\f&u»ﬁ&uhwwwg
\k«.o.-wc.. s Q&.\}J ;,4.,-4 “(o c:.

ey %M de o k;.w
LWl B J"u'.:»- \ae, =

WA w“@%\mwf\f LQQ,M E

’(‘M‘\. 'k-v\c, ﬂ-—-\-\-& \k\e, O\\t..l-—- \(‘-n..\le., \h-k.."\/

5 & |
WXBL&&QD. uuu % W s |
EES \V\\_e, ENasmet gL M@_@Tt}a{f
Zpuup k

LA We & Q&Wcﬁ&

5&< V‘t-\[-eu,w X e Wa.ww W'-GuLL
Wi heiicires, n;ﬂgge;(é\m.\.‘{




@

A N Hu‘g« iy e MG

"Yﬁ\u &(b >V\\e_, SO \)-\_i’ \)\uo\ Coani.
’<e cccen b
%Ml\ A(Mc,‘\" m\\\ \)\'\e_ Nade Ve D.;.&A?‘

@ PV‘-EA)Q.M.J( S P’«_‘v\&u Vi 1!.}\,_;,..“,@.&/
\\\ \)\N_, \Me&‘t Q%\’ &W&MC&

‘Mw&u. e
m \)%BVL&W Q(\'\un '\'wvﬁ L&..t\kchuu\’

P e R R T

Mk Mt o V Q,\-t_.)u* ..I.__\.’\. Qﬂw#gvl
A

%(
%b-\’[val u_\\\ Weue o Le .JJ.W.,_, s

u.n\\l C,cu_;.-mr-.— \3\\0./ \..uu.

\ e )
Iow " y\u N%,,
Won on A0 e 26

W\ M\w_ ‘u.x. . Y\-\.u_?a.wc.c,

ey Ouc'tl\/*-&.b »\-«_..:_., .L_hc‘_umg__
e "re o \VeAiwe A~

cuU.- o@hw i T\x_,_, Q;..c,.c.a)-.b. > n_..\:Jf'

m\\\ Caasse. G

“&ﬂ-é,\ Vi searsss ﬂw,- '\/\w-é/ %v-’hua,l

e\l Q,C-«\J«\.L..- (SN U § Y W

' L
m \ wWeo WMo QJ"’C"‘\‘Q‘A




@ _
\T ,\/\ﬂ-@ Mge—k edA, «_p{ C_,\/u&&ru-\
Lol Yo c,a;su, &< o ol Bd-

Ao e, &
Tt s\&w - m@g’
llcwx Xo ’LLM 1 —
%Q( wiskk YA \Ucu{
il q-k-hﬁ "c, o oeadh WS
vekioon e VMo Desbinl B el

\\M\.«Lb Yo & end

Page 41




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Event Management Plan

Date of Event-May 25™ 2013

Version Dated 11 June 2012

INFORMATION WITHIN THIS DOCUMENT IS CONFIDENTIAL
AND FOR THE USE OF PRE-PLANNING COMMITTEE ONLY
© Continental Drifts

Page 43



Index Of Sections

Overview

Appendix 1- Management team overview

(incorporating organisational structure, staff biogs and contacts list)

Appendix 2- Overview of site facilities and attractions

Appendix 3- Welfare and first aid

Appendix 4- Crowd management and main arena- safety, access and egress
Appendix 5- Emergency protocols, evacuation and intervention procedure
(incorporating emergency procedures, major incident plan and intervention procedures)
Appendix 6- Crime reduction policy

Appendix 7- On site safety controls

Appendix 8- Vulnerable persons protection plan

Appendix 9- Continental Drifts policys

(Incorporating Safety policy, key staff roles and responsibilities and environmental
policy)

Appendix 10- Acoustics report and noise management plan

Appendix 11- Traffic Management plan

Appendix 12- Risk assessments

Appendix 13- Security deployment

Appendix 14- Premises license to follow

Appendix 15- Insurance documents

(Continental Drifts to be renewed in May, We Are Festival insurance to follow)
Appendix 16- Copy of license advertisement and application

Appendix 17- Transport facilities and capacities —To Follow

Appendix 18- Site Map- To follow

Appendix 19— Traders list- to follow

Appendix 20- Alcohol management plan- to follow

Appendix 21- Resident letter- to follow

Appendix 22 -Waste Management and Litter Plan- to follow

Appendix 23 -Sanitary and Washing Facilities Plan- to follow

Appendix 24- Event contractor list- to follow

Page 44



WE ARE FESTIVAL: EVENT OVERVIEW
25™ May 2013

2013 is the 1st year of the We Are Festival, an open air event that will be based
upon live music from artists performing on one large outdoor stage, 6 marquee
arena DJ venues and 5 small marquee style DJ venues. With a VIP area, fairground
and catering/ bar provision.

As well as art and subsidiary entertainment on Damyns Airfield on Saturday 25th
May 2013 between the hours of 11am and 02:30am

The attraction to an event of this nature is that there are a large number of artistes
playing in the venues appealing to a wide range of people. A reasonably diverse
demographic mix would be expected to attend the event. The audience profile
expected is approximately 50/50 male female split, 18-35 age range and will vary in
gender mix and predominant age range at the front of each stage depending on the
acts appearing on stage at any given time. No contentious artists will be booked to
play the event and organisers will provide a form 696 for artists once confirmed.

A joint working approach has been adopted by Lime Green Ltd and Continental Drifts,
Initial meetings have already taken place with Damyns Hall Management and we have
attended a SAG meeting to discuss the event. Throughout the event planning the event
organisers will attend SAG (Safety advisory group) meetings aswell as arrange further
meetings with the Met Police, Transport for London, London Ambulance Service,
Damyns Hall Management, Havering council and Transport for London to organise the
event successfully.

During the event itself the organisers will be supported by the Emergency Liaison team
(ELT) which is the equivalent of an on-site SAG. The ELT will consist of:

Reece Miller, Nikki Gordon , David Winney- Festival directors
Mel Wilds-Continental Drifts- DPS for the event

Havering Council

Tim Byrne-Event Health and Safety officer

Havering Council safety officer

First aid provider

Met police

Steve Bettesworth-Head of Security

Damyns Hall Management

All key decisions about the event will be made by the ELT who will meet regularly during
the event.

For information on the experience of Continental Drifts and key event staff please see
Appendix 1

This event management plan is a working document and will be amended throughout
the planning process

Page 45



Estimated attendance: A maximum attendance of 14,999

Timings:

Saturday 25th May 2013

Doors Open: 11.00

Live music Starts: 11.00

Sale of Alcohol: 11.00-02.00

Music stops:11pm on outdoor stages, 02.30 in marquees
Concessions close 02.00

Doors Close: 23.00

Fencing and Barriers

A combination of heras fencing, crowd barriers and pedestrian fencing supplied
by specialist contractor Eve Trakway will be used to secure different areas of the
site. Full details of the fencing plan will be confirmed in later drafts of this plan.

Stewards and Security

There will be a combination of stewards and SIA qualified security personnel on
duty at the event supplied by specialist contractor SB security. See appendix 1
for company details. Personnel will be deployed as per the security deployment
document (Appendix 13) this will be approved by the metropolitan police, the
plan has been developed after an assessment based on initial meetings, site
visits, knowledge of similar events and industry experience. Security officers will
be on site from the time the first piece of equipment arrives until the last thing
leaves to ensure that there is no tampering with equipment or theft. All security
will be SIA registered and stewards will have undergone rigorous training in
event and crowd safety. All steward and security staff are professional.

Communications

Key site staff, emergency services and security teams will maintain radio contact.
Separate channels will be used for ease of communication. All staff who have a
radio will be trained in its use. There will be a mobile telephone available in the
production office and all staff's mobile contact details will be held in the
production office and provided to emergency services and other agencies
working on the event.

Radio Channel Listings

1 Production / Site Staff

2 Security / Lost Children Staff
3 Traffic Management

4 First Aid Contractor

5 Emergency Services/ ELT

6 Electrician

7 Stages & Sound consultant
8 Markets

9 Sponsorship and Press

10 Spare Channel

Page 46



Signage

Clear and well lit directional signage will direct the audience to exits and
amenities around the site including Toilets, First Aid provision, and refreshment
areas. All stewards, security staff and production staff will carry site maps.

Identification

All event staff will wear branded laminates for ease of identification. Security
staff, stewards and first aid staff will wear appropriate, easily identifiable high-vis
uniforms.

Lighting

5 tower lights will be provided to assist the public to move safely around the site
after dark and aid the safe erection and dismantling of the site. These will be
used only when necessary and will be positioned to avoid light bleed from the
perimeter of the site. Additional festoon and flood lighting will be provided around
the catering areas and toilets. Exits will be lit.

Set Up

Continental Drifts staff will begin marking out the site on Monday 20th May with
the majority of the set up taking place on 21%1-24™ . Set up will be managed to
avoid noise nuisance outside of standard work hours. Agreed details of noise
management will be contained in the Noise Management Plan

Take Down

The event take down will mainly take place on Sunday 26" May. There will be
minimum production items removed when the event ends. The site will be
cleared as quickly as possible and certainly by midday on Tuesday 28" May.
Take down will be managed to avoid noise nuisance outside of standard work
hours. Agreed details of noise management will be contained in the Noise
Management Plan in Appendix 10.

Health and Safety

We will have Tim Byrne, a NEBOSH qualified health and safety officer on site
during the build, break-down and event to oversee health and safety procedures
and advise on best practice. All staff will be briefed on our safety policy and
issued with relevant PPE. Initial draft risk assessments can be found in appendix
12. More in depth event risk assessments will be drawn up in late September
once event contractors and further details about the event have been confirmed.

Drinking Water
Audience have access to free water on site at first aid points. In addition to this
bottled water will be available to buy from stalls and bars.

Site crew
We are providing an experienced site crew for the event. They will take care of all
in-house infrastructure set up and break down.

First Aid

First Aid provision for the event will be provided by Southern Medical who have
assessed the event’s requirements based on guidelines set out in the HSE’s
Purple Guide (see Appendix 3 for details)

Page 47



Fire protection
e Fire protection for the event is in line with industry guidelines, the fire
brigade will be invited to all SAG meetings and will be kept updated with
the event plan. The fire brigade will also be invited to visit the site prior to
opening to carry out any checks as deemed necessary. In the event of a
serious fire, staff will be directed to call 999 for assistance.

Power

Temporary site power will be provided by specialist contractor Pure Power
through Diesel generators with a 3 phase supply. All generators will be earth
spiked and will have RCDs. Cabling will be buried or flown as appropriate.

Waste Management
A detailed Waste Management Plan, including litter collection, will be prepared
and inserted at Appendix 23.

Toilet facilities

Will be provided in line with recommendations in the purple guide (guide to
health and safety at pop concerts and outdoor events) supplier and full
breakdown will be inserted in appendix 24

Traffic Management & Road Closures

Specialist contractor SEP will be producing a full traffic management plan,this
will include traffic calming measures such as temporary lights, trained staff,
clear signage and no parking cones as needed. Traffic plan will be inserted in
later drafts of this document- appendix 11

Site Arrangements
The site has been booked through Damyns Hall Management.

Licensing
A Premises Licence is being applied for by Continental Drifts Ltd. The
Designated Premises Supervisor ("DPS") will be Melanie Wilds, who will hold
the role of DPS at the Event (see Appendix 14).

Lost Persons
A lost persons procedure is in place for the event, see appendix 8

Insurance

Lime Green Ltd will acquire appropriate event insurance prior to the festival,
details tbc. The production contractor Continental Drifts holds 10 million public
and employers liability insurance through Robertson Taylor Insurance Brokers
(see Appendix 15) This policy will be renewed prior to the event. All stallholders
and contractors will be required to submit copies of their Public and Employers
Liability Insurance in advance of the event.

Entrance Policy and conditions of entry

The event will have clearly advertised conditions of entry, please see details
within the crime reduction policy Appendix 6

Page 48



Crowd management

Crowds will be directed around the site using signage erected on scaffolding.
There will be stewards and SIA security staff on site who will be able to assist
with any issues the public may face and will be in contact with security control
through radios. A PA system will be in place across the site to enable vocal
communication with the crowd.

Event contractors

A full event contractor list will be inserted in appendix 25 for. All suppliers will be
required to hold public and employers liability insurance and have sufficient risk
assessments, method statements and any relevant safety certificates- copies of
these will be available for inspection prior to the event and on site.

VIP area
There will be an event VIP area, details of this will be confirmed in later drafts of
this manual

Fireworks/ Pyro
There will be fireworks and special effects as part of the main stage programme.
Full risk assessments and safety documentation for these will be provided in later
drafts of this plan. All equipment used will adhere to British Safety standards.

Curtains and Drapes
Will conform to British safety standard

Acceptable Behaviour

The organisers will not accept racist, inappropriate or aggressive behaviour
amongst audience members, any reports of such incidents will be fully
investigated and the perpetrators, if apprehended, ejected from the event or
handed to the Metropolitan Police. See crime reduction policy Appendix 6 for
more details

Page 49



Appendix one
Management Team overview

Lime Green Ltd

Reece Miller- Project Manager

David Winney- Commercial director

Nikki Gordon- Creative director

The local team (hailing from Upminster, Hornchurch, Rainham & Bretnwood) behind this
event have successfully completed shows at every major club & music arena space
across London, Essex & the UK over the past 14 years from Ministry Of Sound to
Proud2, Brixton Academy to Alexandra Palace, The NEC Birmingham to Pacha London
and many more in between from 200 capacity intimate shows to 20,000 capacity 2 day
festivals.

We are a team made of up vast venue management experience, promotion & marketing
strengths as well as combining the services of some of the finest licensing, production,
logisitics, noise management, traffic management experts available in today’s industry to
deliver to the local community a show to remember.

Continental Drifts

Continental Drifts are an event management company formed in 1996. Continental Drifts
manage events for a wide variety of clients including many local authorities, corporate
companies and arts/ music festivals. The local authority clients of the company include
Hackney, Brent, Haringey, Southwark, Lewisham, Enfield and Waltham Forest.
Corporate clients include Mastercard, British Gas, Listerine, Cisco systems, Aviva and
Cap Gemini. Arts and music festivals include Glastonbury, Bestival, Big Chill, Lovebox
and Larmer Tree.

Continental Drifts manage events for up to 100,000 people

Continental Drifts offer overall event management, consultancy, safety planning,
programming and artist management.

Event Manager-Mel Wilds

Founder, director and event manager of Continental Drifts, Mel has managed many high
profile events including David Blaines ‘Above the below’, BBC Music Live ( South Bank),
the Globe Theatres Gunpowder Plot and the launch of Big Lunch for Mastercard. Mel
has managed Carnaval del Pueblo since 2001 ( Europes largest Latin American
Festival), all Southwark councils events since 2001, Lewisham Peoples day ( since
2006) and in 2010 was awarded a 3 year contract for the management of Blackheath
Fireworks. Mel has also worked as a consultant for Battersea Power station on their
public opening and developed their access plan and risk assessments aswell as the
security deployment for the open house. Mel teaches in event management and works
as a mentor for event trainees.

Health and Safety Officer- Tim Byrne (Nebosh, Tech IOSH)

Tim has extensive experience in event safety which includes Glastonbury festival, Secret
Garden Party, Nokia-music rocks, Diwali, Croydon Mela and World Party, the Children’s
food festival (Oxfordshire), Blackheath fireworks and Lewisham Peoples day. Tim has
also worked in safety for many other events including Plasa, Britain and Irelands next
Top Model, the Ideal home exhibition and the Outdoor Show.

Page 50



SB security Solutions Ltd

SB Security Solutions Ltd, was formed in July 2005 and its clients include Wembley
London Itd, (Arena Backstage security for all major promoters), BBC , various tv shows
(5 years), Secret Garden Party (a 4 day 24hr event ) 27,000 persons camping (4 years).
Other music events include Rox in Bognor regis, a 2 day event, 30,000 persons per day,
fenced arena and large stage, but also incorporating seafront bars and attractions. SB
have also been present at the V Festival in Staffordshire, working for the Promoter, SUM
Concerts, for the past 5 years. SB have recently provided security for Jimmy’s Farm,
Harvest at Jimmy’s, ( 2 day event in Suffolk ) and Feast of Dorset, another 2 day event.
SB are the security contractor for the new London venue- Pleasure Gardens.

Whilst working within the London Boroughs, SB have managed to work as a
‘Partnership’ with the Local Authorities and the Met Police, delivering experience with
working on outdoor Community events in various parks, providing a ‘proactive security’
service to ensure public safety, continuos liaison on crowd dynamics and persons
attending.

Over the past 3 years, SB Security Solutions Itd, have been welcomed at the ‘UK Crime
at Major Festivals’ meetings, hosted by Festival Republic, for Promoters, various Police
forces and Security companies, who organise and take part in the UK’S largest
festivals.The company is an Approved SIA (Security Industry Authority) Contractor and
all staff are vetted to standards. SB also have a sub contractor database which is
audited by the SIA for proper standards.SB Security Solutions Ltd, is a growing
Company within the Security Industry.

Vanguardia

Vanguardia Consulting was formed by Jim Griffiths and John Staunton in May 2006 to
provide specialist advice on sound, noise, acoustics and audio visual design. Jim along
with all directors have a comprehensive and proven track record spanning more than 25
years in the business. oSince the launch, the company has seen a growth in size and
stature and has been commissioned on numerous prestigious and complex projects in
the UK in a wide variety of acoustics, audio and noise disciplines. sVanguardias festival
clients include Creamfields, Big Chill, V Festival and Reading

We Are Festival: Contact list — To be Inserted in later drafts of this plan

Page 51



Appendix 2
Overview of site facilities and attractions

The following is a brief overview of the facilities available on site. Many of the
headings are expanded in more detail within this document and further
information regarding locations can be found on the site plan.

All stage activity will be under the direction of the Production Manager and
Stage Managers at all times, however the only personnel authorised to
implement a show stop procedure are the Event Managers, Security Manager
and Safety Advisor, the only personnel authorised to implement a change in
the running order/times are the Event Managers in liaison with the Production
Manager.

Main stage
The main stage will also contain structures to support the PA and the
screens; dressing rooms etc will be located behind the stage.

The main stage will be faced with a primary pit barrier of standard A-frame
construction which is able to withstand a crowd pressure in excess of 5Kn/m.
Due to the front of stage barrier forming a sequence of inter-connecting
sections which form a dynamic load bearing structure.

A working area for stewards, security and medics of at least 1.5m width will
be created between the downstage edge and the barrier. The crowd density
and mood will be regularly monitored.

Stage schedule
Full details tbc

Secondary stages and soundsystems

Details tbc

Stages will be faced with a primary pit barrier of standard A-frame
construction which is able to withstand a crowd pressure in excess of 5Kn/m.
The audience capacity will be calculated using parameters in Technical
Standards for Places of Entertainment (as the arena is more akin to an
arena/music hall than a event stage). The guidance indicates that an
audience density of between 03 — 0.5 m2 per person is acceptable in these
types of venue; averaged out at a density of 0.4m2 per person- capacity for
each tent tbc in later drafts of this plan.

Based on an evacuation time of 2 minutes, the organisers will provide
appropriate exits. Emergency exits will be designated with a standard
illuminated sign supplied from an independent power source.

Exit width calculations are based on an exit capacity of 80 persons per minute
per metre of exit width (Fire Safety Guidance for Open Air Festivals published
by The Department for Communities and Local Government gives an
acceptable exit flow rate of 109 persons per metre per minute), Exits will be
placed to allow for clearance within two minutes even if the largest exit is
unavailable:

Page 52



The organisers recognise the risk of overcrowding in these structures during
particularly popular acts and have developed strategies to manage this; this

will be covered in more detail in the crowd managment plan in a later draft of
this document. The crowd density and mood will be regularly monitored.

Stage schedule
Full details tbc

Bars

Bars will be managed by the bar supplier under the supervision of the
Designated Premises Supervisor in accordance with the requirements of the
Premises Licence. Each bar will be managed by an experienced bar manager
who is a personal license holder. All main arena bars will open when the
arena opens to the public, all arena bars will be required to close at half an
hour before the stages finish.

Bar managers will make reasonable endeavour to ensure that persons under
18 are not served with alcohol and that all drinks are dispensed in plastic
cups or PET containers or cans which have been opened, all bar staff will be
trained to adopt the Under 25 policy, bar staff will be over 23 to help them to
enforce this policy. Full details of the operation of the bars will be contained
with the Alcoho!l Management Plan which is Appendix 21.

Food Concessions

Food concessions will be managed by Continental Drifts Ltd and will be
located around in the concession rings detailed on the site plan, offering a
variety of hot and cold food and drinks. A list will be submitted to the councils
environmental health team in advance of the event. The site map will detail
the location of all food concessions units. Stall health and safety
documentation, insurance, HACCP to comply with the food hygiene
regulations 2006.

Market Areas

Market stalls will be co-located with bars and catering concessions and will be
managed by Continental Drifts Ltd who may subcontract out the management
of these areas but are still ultimately responsible.

All concessions and bars will be required to have adequate fire fighting
provision and hand wash facilities, barriers will be used to delineate risk areas
where necessary. Any build up of waste will be monitored and dealt with.

Merchandise
There will be event merchandise available, as well as merchandise for
headline bands, this will be available in units around the site.

Amusements and other attractions

The organisers are considering the inclusion of amusements and other
attractions and will provide full details of these when available- any
amusements will be required to have ADIP certificates and insurance and will
be checked by the event safety officer prior to opening.

Page 53



Appendix 3
First Aid and welfare

Welfare & Information

An arena welfare tent will be available where members of the public will be
able to obtain advice and assistance from counsellors and experienced
welfare staff. The welfare staff will also operate a left items service and a
lost/found property service for any items left in their care, which are not
collected during the weekend. The welfare operation will be confidential and
other agencies should only become involved when the welfare staff request
assistance.

Arena First Aid and Medical Provision

The main first aid post (FAPs) will be located in the arena, co-located with
suitable vehicle access; further FAPs will be located around the site. The
FAPs will receive casualties from the arena and either definitively treat them
or refer them to A&E department.

First Aid cover as recommended by Southern medical is listed below

8x Ambulance/Nursing Personnel.

10xFirst Aiders.

1x Doctor.

1x A&E transfer ambulance.

2x Ambulances/Tents as first aid posts

The first Aid provider will liaise with LAS (London Ambulance service)
regarding follow up care/ facility location of casualties and the overall plan for
the event.

Facilities for People with different needs

Lime Green Ltd accept their responsibility to take all reasonably practicable
steps to ensure that people with different needs are catered for.

A viewing platform for wheelchair users will be located at the main stage. The
platform will have an unobstructed view of the stage. Accessible toilets will
also be located at the viewing platform and at the sanitation compounds.
Wheelchair users will be allowed to access the tented stages dependant on
crowd densities at the time.

There will be parking available for blue badge holders in the car park nearest
to the site.

Signers and Braille programmes available on request

Page 54



Appendix 4- Crowd management

Crowd Management and Control

The We Are festival will be a licensed event with a controlled number of entry/exit points.
The festival site will be fenced and access to the event is by ticket, therefore the
numbers attending are strictly controlled.

The vast majority of the festival audience will be 18 to mid-30’s with an estimated 50:50
male: female split. Those under 18 will not be permitted access to the site and security
will adopt a challenge 25 policy.

Event security and stewarding will be undertaken by the appointed security company SB
Security, who will generate their own stewarding plans.

SB Security will establish their own chain of command and this will include an overall
security manager who will be SIA accredited.

Upon arrival to the main public entrance into the festival site, all members of public shall
enter queuing lanes where their bags shall be searched for prohibited items, there will
also be metal detector arches at the entrance.

In the event of a severe crowd disorder where the resources at the event are unable to
contain the prevailing situation; crowd management and control has to default to the
Police, who will be in attendance on site, in the maintenance of Public Order and Public
Safety.

We Are festival will adopt crowd management procedures are in accordance with the
recommendations in the Event Safety Guide and the HSE document ‘Managing Crowds
Safely’ and based on experience of the anticipated audience.

Crowd control is the overall responsibility of the Security Manager, assisted by
stewarding and Site Safety Staff.

The We Are ticket holders and pass holders are expected to be a high end and very
good natured crowd. The event programmers have worked with this audience for some
years and have an understanding of the requirements and essence of the crowd. The
site is designed with in excess of 10 formal different venues, markets and on site
facilities to keep the public entertained and happy for the duration of the event.

The pedestrian gates for the entry and exit of the audience are kept completely

clear of all obstacles, and queuing systems will be defined by the use of crowd

barriers. To minimise crowd pressure at the entrances and speed up entry several lanes
are staffed by stewards, who will check tickets, and by security staff, who manage the
crowds and do searches.

To spread the arrival of the audience, the gates open at 11am.

The Festival is expected to be ticket only, although subject to sales data an on-site box
office may be set up.

The We Are site will be designed in such a manner as to prevent overcrowding in any
one area. The layout of the markets, pedestrian walkways, roads and venues will be
developed to accommodate numbers moving around the site, removing pinch points and
addressing areas of congestion. The total arena space has the capacity to
accommodate significantly more than the numbers applied for in this licence application.
With such a large site and the surrounding airfield, any emergency evacuation, planned
with the advice of Emergency Services, would be, most likely, of only part of the site.

In most foreseeable events this would not involve the audience leaving through the
gates, and the possibility of congestion that could involve. The Festival would in effect

Page 55



provide its own rest centre. A full evacuation plan and policy will be agreed with the
Emergency Services and the organisers will attend SAG groups in the run up to the
event.

Acts will be scheduled in such a way as to prevent excessive numbers at any one
performance. Where there is likely to be a particularly popular act at one venue, another
popular act will be scheduled to perform at another venue at the same time.

To prevent mass crowd movements, the different stages have staggered start and finish
times and running orders, so the audience have to choose between popular acts, and
not attempt to move en masse at the end of one performance on one stage to a different
venue. Act popularity and crowd movements will be reviewed throughout the Festival.
Adjustments to timings can be made at short notice.

When the outdoor entertainment ends at 11pm, there are a few (carefully

monitored) stalls in the markets with music, so the crowds move in small numbers to the
larger arenas or to the transport to take them away from the event site. Main headliners
are scheduled to end at 10pm to allow people to leave the site in a staggered manner

Site Safety personnel will patrol the site and monitor crowd movements. Their role
includes:

» Ensuring no vehicles park in fire lanes, emergency access roads, gateways or public
walkways.

* Informing safety control about any congestion or potential congestion.

« Assisting in the management of crowd dispersal, using loud hailers.

 Checking and stopping any non essential vehicle movements.

Site safety staff work in tandem with the stewards and security staff patrolling in
any particular area.

Several strategically sited CCTV cameras will provide information on crowd
movements, including coverage of the main entertainment and gate areas.

To ensure the safety of the audience at the main stages:

* The barriers used are bespoke pit barriers installed on level ground with a significant
curve. A substantial number of trained professional pit security officers are positioned
within the pit and designated ‘spotters’ will monitor the crowd.

» Highly qualified pit medical teams will assist with crowd monitoring and treat patients.

« There will be established communication protocols and a chain of command to stop a
performance should the need arise.

* Production and Security liaise with artistes in advance of their performance to ensure that
the ‘style’ of their performance is suitable and appropriate. The importance of fully
understanding programme content, the band’s ‘excitability factor’ and timing is
acknowledged to be a major element in anticipating and preventing crowd problems.

« The barrier arrangements are reviewed as artistes appearances are confirmed. It may be
felt necessary to modify existing arrangements in light of the acts booked.

« Large video screens and delay speakers will be used on the main stages to ensure that
the audience at the back of the arenas have clear sight and hearing of performances.

« The audience is kept informed by the PA systems. There is extensive access to and
egress from all arenas.

» Competitive programming between the main stages will spread the audience.

SB Security will manage all areas across the festival site including public areas,

backstage, and staff access points in order to manage entry into these areas.
SBSecurity will maintain clear access to the fire exits throughout the event.

Page 56



The safety officer and the Security Manager will monitor all areas and deploy additional
security as necessary.

Main Arena- Safety, access and egress

Admission to backstage and production facilities will be by pass only. Accreditation
points will be specified prior to the event opening.

Security will be positioned at key areas to protect equipment, maintain exit routes,
maintain emergency routes and monitor and control pedestrian flow and provide
continuous update of events around the site to Security Control.

Admission to the Front of Stage Barriers will be restricted to the front of stage Pit
Security team and medical teams essential to public safety. Photographers shall be
escorted in and out of the pit by designated Media staff who will liaise with the Pit
Security Manager.

The Front of Stage Barrier system in the arenas and in front of the main stage will be
of a demountable type with a minimum loading of 5 kN per metre run at a height of
1.2 metres. Security and medics will operate a working walkway of a minimum of 1.5
metres in depth, running the length of the barrier to enable safe extraction of
members of the audience. The working areas will be cleaned on a regular basis
between acts if possible. Any public personal items that have come over the barriers
during a performance will be taken as soon as possible to the Welfare Area and
treated as lost property.

Disabled persons have full access to all public parts of the arena other than where
crowd safety concerns make this impractical. This decision will be made by the
security supervisor for that area.

The evacuation of disabled customers from a potentially compromised area would
be difficult; therefore access to areas of high congestion will be discouraged.

All delay towers, camera positions and structures etc located within the arena will be
clad or otherwise protected to prevent climbing.

A security manager/supervisor will be based in Event Control and will maintain
liaison and contact with the Security Manager and Security Control throughout the
event. The security managers/supervisors will be directed by the Security Manager
as to the deployment of their resources in response to intelligence received by Event
Control and Security Control.

Ingress

The main arena entrance for day ticket holders will be at Gate 1 where
tickets/wristbands will be checked.

Queues will be managed by the security contractor. Additional stewards will be there
to enhance these arrangements and a security manager will observe gate flow and
call for assistance if needed

Once the majority of customers are in the arena entrance lanes will be broken down
and entrances will revert to being exit gates, stewards will be redeployed around the
arena, as required.

Page 57



Ingress flow rates
The flow rate formula for entrance gates to allow for a search procedure is:
6 people per minute x the number of lanes x time

Gate 1

Available queuing space is 30 x 36= 900 sgm at 0.5 densities we have a queue
space for 2160 people.

We have a total of 12 lanes which can process 4320 people per hour

Gate 2- guests and VIPS

Available queuing space is 10x 20 = 200sgm at 0.5 densities we have a queue
space for 400 people.

We have a total of 2 lanes which can process 2400 people per hour

General arena ingress operational methodology

On arrival at the queuing lanes, each person must produce a valid ticket. No money
will be taken on the gates, but there will be a ticket office on the perimeter of the site
for any on the day sales. Customers will then pass through a search lane where
prohibited items such as glass bottles, alcohol, cans, visual and sound recording
equipment will be rejected. ltems which are deemed to be offensive or restricted
items will be refused entry.

Honesty boxes for the placement of prohibited items will be placed at the entry lanes
and in the queuing area; once the event closes items recovered from these boxes
will be handed over to the Welfare Staff, any illegal items contained within the
honesty boxes will be handed to the Metropolitan Police representative located in
Event Control.

Sufficient and appropriate signage will indicate the entry route to the event. Stewards
will be pro-active in assisting members of the public.

Pedestrian flow rates and queues will be monitored throughout ingress by senior
supervisors to establish attendance. This will be fed back to Security Control and in
return fed to Event Control. Once the event site is approximately at 75% of its
capacity, entry lanes will then be progressively closed and barriers cleared to allow
additional egress routes. The staff on entrance gates will then be re-deployed into
the site where there is considered to be the most need. Provision will be made for
late arrival at all of the entry points.

Egress

This section deals with routine egress only, emergency egress is discussed later in
the document.

Once the entertainment in the main arena has finished, audience members will be
encouraged to leave the arena; bars will close at 02.00 so as not to encourage the
audience to remain in the arena. House lights (a combination of towers and stage
working lights only) will be switched on to offer additional illumination and audience
members will be guided to the appropriate exits.

Gate egress capacities

The following are worked out on the basis of 80 people per metre per minute x 15
minutes

Gate 1- 36m 43,200 Open initially as entry lanes reversed during the day to allow
maximum egress capacity for end of show

Page 58



Gate 2 — 5m 6,000- Backstage/ artist/ VIP and press
Gate 3- 7m 8,400- emergency exit and for end of show
Gate 4- 7m 8,400- emergency exit only

Gate 5- 7m 8,400- emergency exit only

End of Stage Activity

The stage activity in the main arena will not continue past the curfew time as detailed
in the Premises Licence. If at any time the Stage Manager thinks that this curfew will
not be achieved, they must notify the Event Manager, Safety Manager and Event
Control immediately. The Event Manager will decide, in liaison with the licensing
authority and police, if the show should be allowed to over run, i.e. if there a risk of
public order should the full set not be allowed to finish. A schedule of stage operating
times will be submitted to all parties prior to the event. It is possible that this may
change over the weekend and each person must make it their responsibility to
ensure they are working off the most recent schedule.

Closing of Main Arena

Once all stages have ended their activity the Security Manager will instruct the
stewards to conduct a sweep of the main stage arena to ensure that all members of
the public have left the area. Once it is confirmed that the arena is clear the Security
Manager will inform event control who will lift the arena vehicle curfew and allow the
clean up to commence.

Visitor access and egress

We Are festival estimate that the visitors to the event will arrive by varying means of
transport

See estimation below.

By Car- estimate 1000 cars, each with an average 3 people. (20% of audience)

By tube 20% of audience-3000 people

By overland/ nearby stations-10% (1500 people)

By Taxi/ drop off-30% of audience-6000 people

By coach/ ticket combination- 20%- 3000 people

We estimate that from the 14,999 people the arrival will be staggered

Estimated arrival times

Time Numbers expected
11am 700
12pm 1000
1pm 2000
2pm 2500
3pm 2499
4pm 3000
5pm 1000
6pm 1000
7pm 800
8pm 500

Page 59



Estimated dispersal times

8pm 500
9pm 500
10pm 750

10.15pm 1499
10.30pm 1750
11pm 2000
11.15pm 2000
11.30pm 1200

12pm 1000
12.30pm 1000
1am 500
1.30am 800
2am 500
2.30am 1000

We are intending to use the top car park (Aveley Rd/ Warwick Lane) as the coach/ Taxi
pick up point. These vehicles will also be able to access the site from this point and then
operate in a one way system to the pick up point. A Stop/ Go board system or temporary
traffic lights will be used to hold back traffic as necessary to allow a large vehicle to get
the swing needed to access or egress. We will be consulting with our traffic
management company and with the Damyns hall management team to ensure this
works effectively. If necessary an additional entry can be created.

Ticketholders will be asked to indicate their means of travel to the event when
purchasing their ticket. Ticketholder emails will be logged and there will be ongoing
communication with the audience in the run up to the event both via mail outs and the
website.

There will be shuttle buses operating throughout the day from Upminster station,
numbers for these will be determined after a postcode and ticket holder analysis.

Car park spaces and numbers per car will be pre booked so this will give us a good
indication of expected numbers for this means of transpont.

Likewise coach/ ticket combinations will be pre booked and will be offered from a
number of locations.

There will be additional coaches available for peak egress time between 10pm and
11.30pm.

We will be speaking to TFL and National Rail to ensure service levels and to extend
running times and carriage length if possible. (we have achieved this for previous events
but it usually will be confirmed closer to the time)

Atfter parties will take place at Proud (4000 capacity) and Warehouse (1000 capacity)
These will be available as a ticket bolt on and will have good quality headliners to attract
this level of numbers. Transport will be included in this bolt on.

Customers will be discouraged from attempting to walk to or from the site due to the lack

of pavements. Staff will actively monitor this and all event advertising will make this
clear.

Page 60



Experience of other events

Continental Drifts have worked on many events with a similar or larger audience to
the We Are Festival and have found that event egress is generally a gradual
process. With the We Are Festival the audience is likely to start leaving prior to the
end of the event as it is a long event and many people will want to leave to access
main transport links.

Site Inspection

An inspection of the site and facilities will be made before the event is opened to the
public. The inspection will ensure the integrity of the site infrastructure and that the
site is suitable in order to admit members of the public. The main arena will be
completed and ready for inspection other than for minor details by 16:00 on the day
preceding the event where any modifications or remedial work will be agreed
between the relevant responsible authorities, safety manager and site manager.

In the event of any item, facility or situation being identified as not meeting any of the
licence conditions during the inspection, the site manager or safety advisor will
endeavour to rectify the situation immediately through the appropriate channels.

On the day of the event the final inspections will be undertaken in a systematic,
logical manner to ensure that customers are allowed into the site as soon as
possible and if necessary the areas they can access may be limited initially. For
example, main entrances will be dealt with first, then individual tents with back-stage
areas following later.

Audience and Crowd Control

Crowd Management

The site will be designed to ensure it

¢ has adequate means of escape in the event of an emergency
o allows for the free flow of the public during the event

e avoids creation of bottlenecks and even out crowd densities

Stewarding

The number of stewards required at the event will be determined as a result of a risk
assessment carried out by the Chief Steward. The risk assessment takes into account: -
¢ The nature of the site

¢ The nature of the expected audience

e The performance

e The Stewarding of exits and fire patrols
Lighting and Signage

e The site will be provided with adequate and sufficient lighting and emergency lighting
in line with relevant British Standard

e The site will be adequately sign posted to avoid confusion

e Exit and directional signs shall conform to the Health and Safety (Signs and Signals)
Regulations 1996

e Fire warning systems shall comply with British Standards

Page 61



Facilities for People with additional needs

The organisers of the event recognise that need to put in facilities for members of the
public with special needs and will endeavour to make the site and the entertainment
accessible to all.

The organisers will pay particular attention to:

Provision for ease of access and egress

Special parking facilities

The provision of individual facilitation where requested

Provision of welfare and sanitary provision

The provision of signage and signers if appropriate

Appendix 5- Emergency Protocols, evacuation & Intervention procedures
We Are Festival 2013
Introduction

This document will set out how the production team of the Festival will react to a number
of emergency situations which have been detailed under the headings of Weather,
Transport & Harm, all of which are the normal festival concerns.This appendix will then
look at the general emergency plans for the event and also the major incident plan

l. Team set-up
On the event day there will be scheduled meetings of the ELT.

At these there will be feedback from each party and time to assess and monitor crowd
developments. These meetings will be led by the event manager. These meetings can
be called more regularly should this be necessary. These meetings will be minuted.

In the event of an emergency on the site the Event Organiser, Head of security, Police
Silver, the H&S officer, the Fire Service and the Ambulance may be involved. In order to
achieve the smooth running of operations;

The Head of Security will be responsible for dealing with most emergencies, which may
occur, and taking the appropriate decisions. However, the Police may need to take
responsibility of a more serious emergency or any incident deemed as a critical incident.
If the police take control the relevant handover document will be signed and the
expectation will then be for the stewards / security teams to support the MPS as
directed.

The Event Control cabin will be used as an emergency team control point. This will be
used by all official personnel. The control point will have a copy of the site plan and a
listing of all relevant services and their telephone number.

Il. Weather

Regarding the weather we have constant updates on the weather in the main production
office where we monitor all the elements. But in the last few years the weather has
become more and more un-predictable and so we have to alter our plans accordingly.

Page 62



In the case of extreme rain
Which makes the event dangerous to hold, (i.e. site waterlogged) then if it comes in the
build up to the event;

o We will look at the forecast and make a decision in consultation with Damyns
Hall Management, who will have intimate knowledge of the site, as to whether we
can go ahead with the event or not.

e The final decision will be made by the event H&S officer, Mel Wilds & Reece
Miller.

¢ Should the decision be made to cancel or postpone the event the events press
office will be actioned with informing the public.

If extreme rain hits during the event;

e We will put the information up on the website and also inform the public attending
at station if we are expecting worse. TFL will also be informed and requested to
put announcements on trains.

e A decision as to whether it safe to keep going with the event will be made by the
event H&S officer, Mel Wilds & Reece Miller after consulting with the head of
security, Damyns Hall Management and the Site Manager.

e Should the decision be made to cancel or postpone the event the events press
office will be actioned with informing the public.

Thunder & Lightening
e The weather forecast will be checked and posted in the Event Control as well as
online.
e The decision will be made by the site H&S officer, Mel Wilds & Reece Miller as to
the safe continuation of the event.
e Should the decision be made to cancel or postpone the event the events press
office will be actioned with informing the public.

e The weather forecast will be checked and posted in the Event Control as well as
online.

e The decision will be made by the site H&S officer, Mel Wilds & Reece Miller as to
the safe continuation of the event should severe winds be forecast.

e Should the decision be made to cancel or postpone the event the events press
office will be actioned with informing the public.

lll. Transport

The Roads

A traffic management plan is being developed for the event to ease congestion around
the site, allow safe and speedy egress and allow residents to gain access to their
properties.

IV. Harm

We have an extensive plan in place regarding the safety of our audience. It incorporates
a team of SIA and stewarding personnel placed across the site. The numbers and
placements are based on previous experience of similar events.

Page 63



We Are Festival 2013 has several strands of personnel who are charged with the duty of
protecting the welfare of those attending and working at the event. This document
serves to explain the roles of these key staff and to put forward the management
structure and procedures which need to be followed at the event.

The policy and procedures are concentrating on a preventative approach looking at early
intervention and a multi-agency approach to dissolve situations before they escalate.

When an incident is noted and initial intervention begins, it is important that this is
recorded by security control and that personnel attend the incident/ area where possible.
Each further intervention should be logged.

B. General harm prevention at the event

At the event
There will be security teams within the event, supported by stewards and police officers.

C. General on site accidents

e Any accident shall be reported to Security Control where it will be noted and
assessed. The decision will be taken there to refer it the production office if it is a
site issue that needs improvement and Medical provider if the situation required
medical attention.

¢ In the case of a member of the public going straight to Medical provider for
attention, then Medical provider will record the incident and decide whether to
refer it to Security Control.

D. General on site Anti Social Behaviour
e We will be taking information from the event and our roving teams to the ELT
meetings at Event Control where we will be constantly assessing the behaviour
of the crowd.
¢ Any decision regarding the possibility of general trouble or on site fighting getting
out of control will be taken by the Head of security and where necessary MPS will
take over the management of the situation.

E. In case of a critical incident.
e The Head of security will work with MPS to decide the most appropriate course of
action and where necessary MPS will take over the management of the situation.

F. In case of a bomb threat.
e The Head of Security will work with MPS to decide the most appropriate course
of action and where necessary MPS will take over the management of the
situation.

G. Borough emergency planning team

The event manager will provide a briefing for the council emergency planning Silver prior
to the event. Should a major incident occur at the event the council emergency planning
Silver will be informed. If the incident is of such a nature that it will have significant
impact beyond the event site then the event manager will work with the Emergency
Planning Silver and make the event resources available to assist with the ongoing
management of the incident. Should an incident occur elsewhere in the borough that

Page 64



may impact on We Are Festival, the Emergency Planning Silver will inform the event
manager who will assess the potential impact and continue to liaise and take action as
required.

VI. Role descriptions

Damyns Hall Management

Damyns Hall Management are the owners of the site but have handed over control of
the event site event to Lime Green Ltd who in turn have employed Continental Drifts as
the event managers for the event.

Havering Council
Havering council are the local council for this area and are welcome to have a
representative on site during the event

Continental Drifts

Continental Drifts are employed by Lime Green Ltd to manage the event on their behalf,
Mel Wilds will be the event manager for the We Are Festival event and Keeley Webb will
be the production co-ordinator. All key decisions and actions at the event should be
agreed by Mel Wilds to ensure relevant action is taken across the site where necessary.

The Police

The Police are there to support the event (tbc). Their main role is to prevent crime and
disorder and where persons commit offences to take the appropriate action. In the event
of a major or critical incident will take command following consultation with the
respective leads.

Security

Security will manage any incident (except as mentioned above) at the event. There will
be a number of staff at the event with a variety of roles; there will be security at stages
and across the site aswell as around the perimeter and at the gates. There will also be
response teams around the site to deal with situations as they arise. Security will hold
the event log and all incidents should be reported to security control.

Stage Manager Intervention Procedure

Stage manager should assess the crowd at regular intervals and should take account of
crowd density and atmosphere. Should there be a problem, the intervention procedure
below should be implemented in steps:

1. MC INTERVENTION - If crowd is too dense at front of stage barrier, MC
intervention should be used to ask the crowd to step back from the barrier. Stage
security should be alerted and kept on stand-by.

2. MC INTERVENTION - If the atmosphere of the crowd is becoming tense or
unruly, MC intervention should be the first action taken to try and calm the crowd
and instill a more positive atmosphere.

3. MUSIC CHANGE ~ If MC Intervention is unsuccessful and it appears the music
style is contributing to the unruliness of the crowd, the stage manager should
adjust the music style appropriately (i.e. DJ or live artist)

4. SECURITY INTERVENTION — If MC Intervention and music change are both
unsuccessful in altering the mood or density of the crowd, stage security should
call for back up.

Page 65



POLICE INTERVENTION - If previous intervention procedures are unsuccessful,
security should call for police assistance.

Draft Emergency Plan & Procedures

Command and Control Structure

The event manager, in consultation with Lime Green Ltd and the health and safety
officer will make any decision whether the emergency plan is activated.

An emergency liaison team (ELT) will consist of:

Name Role

Reece Miller, David Winney, Nikki Gordon Festival Directors
Damyns Hall Management
Venue manager
Council safety officer (if required)

Havering Police Event Liaison (tbc)

Mel Wilds Event Manager and licensee
Tim Byrne Health and Safety Manager
Steve Bettesworth Security Manager

Southern Medical

The ultimate responsibility for the Event lies with the Premises Licence Holder. The
responsibility for the sale and supply of alcohol rests with the Designated Premises
Supervisor.

Regular meetings of the ELT will be held throughout the day of the event at the following
times:

10am, 11.30am, 3pm, 5pm, 7.30pm, 9.30pm, 11.30pm, 1.30am

The ELT group will meet in event control.

Additional meetings will be convened if necessary.

Introduction

Security and stewards will be positioned at various points internally and externally to
comply with the risk assessment carried out by Continental Drifts Ltd and the security
contractor (Stewards and security deployment included in Appendix F)

The risk assessment will take into account:

The nature of the site

The nature and size of the expected audience

The performance programme
The stewarding of exit points and fire controls

PN~

The security company will appoint a security supervisor whose sole role is to ensure that
security and stewarding arrangements are adequate and that there is effective
communication with, and full cooperation is given to the emergency services and officers
of the council. He or She will be located at security control for the duration of the event.

Page 66



Security supervisors will be appointed to separate areas for command and control
purposes. The supervisors have been briefed upon the venue layout in general, and
their working area in detail.

All security officers and stewards will be identified by wearing uniforms.
Those positioned on roadways will wear high visibility vests or jackets.

Each security officer will have direct radio contact with security control.

Each security officer/steward will be fully briefed on their duties and carry a briefing pack
that will include radio frequencies, command structure and a plan of the site showing all
exits.

Method of Operation

Condition Green- No major problems but staff to remain vigilant at all times to potential
problems.

Condition Orange- Staff to be aware that there is a potential major problem and to be
standing by to put into effect the operational above.

Condition Ruby- All staff to implement the emergency action plan and carry out any
instructions issued to them by a member of the ELT or members of the emergency
services.

The authority to change the alert status shall at all times rest with the security company
and the persons within the chain of command.

Operational Action
Condition Orange
Radio control shall be instructed to broadcast the following announcement:

‘“WILL MR JARVIS PLEASE CONTACT INFORMATION TENT (repeat)

The following procedures shall be implemented

e The ELT shall assemble in the ELT room

o All staff to observe radio silence

e Senior security supervisor to proceed to the location of the incident, assess the
problem and report back via radio to the ELT

o If appropriate, designated members of the ELT will go to the arena to further
assess the situation Event Manager to ensure that entertainment is ready to stop
and stage PAs used to make announcements

e Stewards to be on standby to remove any barriers or other obstacles from exits

e Access onto site kept clear for emergency vehicles

Page 67



Condition Ruby
Radio control shall be instructed to broadcast the following radio announcement:

“WILL MR JARVIS PLEASE CONTACT INFORMATION TENT IMMEDIATELY”
The following procedures shall be implemented

e The area immediately surrounding the incident to be secured by security

e Radio silence to be observed

e Security and stewards to ensure that the only vehicle movements are emergency
vehicles

e Security and stewards to ensure no vehicle movements in the car park

e All security and stewards to stand by for the instructions for evacuation of site

Standing down from condition ruby or orange
Radio control shall be instructed to broadcast the following radio announcement:

“THE PREVIOUS MESSAGE FOR MR JARVIS IS CANCELLED”

Code Words

The following code words are in operation for We Are Festival 2013
Mr Sands Fire

Mr Case Suspect Package/Bomb

Mr Cheshire Public disorder, crowd control problems
Moses Lost person

Mr Jarvis Change of alert state

Evacuation Procedure
We may need to evacuate an area of the site, or the whole area.

The following broadcast coded message: “WILL MR. JARVIS PLEASE CONTACT
INFORMATION TENT” means that the alert state has gone to ORANGE. This means
staff must Standby and await instructions from supervisors — at this point, the public
should be unaware that anything has changed, but staff must prepare for the possibility
that we are about to evacuate an area.

The following broadcast coded message: “WILL MR JARVIS PLEASE CONTACT
INFORMATION TENT IMMEDIATELY” means that the alert state has gone to RUBY.
An evacuation of the site could follow. From this point on, staff must follow the
instructions of the Security and Police officers in their areas, as they will have accurate
information about the evacuation and which direction the public must go.

Full evacuation will take place as follows:
The event manager/ security team will stop the activities on the site, and the event

office will broadcast the following pre-recorded announcement. In some
circumstances, it will be necessary to stop the performance immediately and, if this

Page 68



happens, Security and Police personnel have priority over all We Are Festival staff
as they will have more information about the situation.

This message will also be read or played by Control over the public address system

“LADIES AND GENTLEMEN THIS IS AN EMERGENCY MESSAGE. WILL YOU
PLEASE VACATE THE EVENT AREA BY FOLLOWING THE DIRECTIONS OF
SECURITY AND POLICE OFFICERS. PLEASE WALK AS QUICKLY AND QUIETLY AS
POSSIBLE”

The following procedures shall be implemented

e All security and stewards to take every possible action to prevent vehicle
movements, except emergency vehicles

o All stewards to assist in directing the public down designated safe egress routes.

¢ Once the area to be evacuated has been cleared, stewards will secure the
entrances to prevent re-entry

e Security and stewards to continue control of entrances until told to stand down by
the ELT

If the alert state is cancelled, the following announcement will be broadcasted: “THE
PREVIOUS MESSAGE FOR MR JARVIS IS CANCELLED”

Part Evacuation

If we are to instruct a partial evacuation (e.g. a viewing area) the following procedure
shall be implemented

¢ All security and stewards to take every possible action to prevent vehicle
movements, except emergency vehicles

o All stewards to assist in directing the public to designated safe areas

e Once the area to be evacuated has been cleared, stewards to ensure no one
returns to the area

The decision to permit re-admission to the incident area and the restarting of the event
will be made by the ELT.

Place of Safety / Rendezvous Point

All site crew, guests and members of the public departing the area in the event of an
emergency evacuation shall be stewarded down safe egress routes adjacent to the site.
Security Control will co-operate fully with the emergency services on this to maintain
maximum control and safety of life. Staff must then return to the designated RVPs.

Contingencies

Cancellation of event

Prior to day of event - Press releases will go out to local media, posters will be put up in
public spaces around the venue including public transport and the venue itself.

Page 69



On day of event — Press releases to local media, posters at venue and public spaces
and stewards will be positioned within venue site for face-to- face communications

Delayed start

Public Announcements from pa systems/loud hailers to notifying delay and approximate
time for the start — event will still finish on time. Stewards informed of what to tell public
and will deal with all face-to-face communications. Continual announcements to keep
public informed of delay and approx. new start time.

Access change for emergency access

The event has RV points for emergency access. Depending on the incident’s location,
the emergency services would be called and notified of the RV point and would be met
by a member of the management team. The event will have 3 main RV points. Access
points for emergency services will be decided dependant on location and seat of
incident.

Inclement Weather

If the event is temporarily closed due to inclement weather - public announcements will
be made to inform the public to leave the event site and proceed to a place of safety.
Continual announcements will be made over all pa systems/loud hailers to inform when
the event site is safe to return to.

The decision to permit re-admission to the incident area and the restarting of the event
will be made by the EIT.

Evacuation

With such a large site and the surrounding airfield, any emergency evacuation, planned
with the advice of Emergency Services, would be, most likely, of only part of the site.

In most foreseeable events this would not involve the audience leaving through the
gates, and the possibility of congestion that could involve. The Festival would in effect
provide its own rest centre. There are several large spaces on the perimeter of the site
which public could be evacuated to if needed.

Whilst buildings and structures have evacuation time of between 2 and 3 minutes
dependant upon the type of structure that it is, open festival sites such as this do not
have defined evacuation times due the various types of emergency scenarios that may
develop. Often in festivals it is only necessary to move crowds away from an area of
danger rather than to implement a full site evacuation and this can be completed within a
few minutes.

In the event that a situation developed whilst members of the public were in attendance
at the festival that meant the event had to be cancelled and could not continue,
depending on the developing scenario the response could be to ask members of the
public to leave the site with their belongings and vehicles which would take up to a
couple of hours to clear the site of public or there may be a requirement to implement an
immediate full-site evacuation and move everybody off of the site quickly in an
acceptable period of time.

For an immediate full site evacuation it is deemed that a time of 15 minutes is an

acceptable period of time to evacuate the total site capacity off of the site. In the event of
a full site evacuation members of the public would be stewarded away from the location

Page 70



of the incident and would exit the site using the most appropriate route for the scenario
that is developing.

For partial evacuation of outdoor areas within the festival site it is deemed a time of 8-
minutes to be an acceptable period of time to evacuate part of the site capacity away
from an area of danger.

The primary route for emergency vehicles to access the festival site is via the
Showground Main Vehicle Entrance off Aveley Rd.. Further details will be available in
the Traffic Management Plan in later drafts of this document.

Festival Site

The proposed audience capacity for the festival site is 14,999 people. The overall
capacity of the area is in excess of this figure even when we take in to account “non-
event spaces” such as grass areas between venues and roadways.

There are three main roadways running around the perimeter of the site, plus grass
areas around the fenced perimeter. These road ways are approximately 4-5-meters
wide.

There are large spaces for evacuation points around the site. We will ensure we have
clear pathways to these areas. We will have facility on site to bring hot drinks and
emergency supplies to the areas as needed. Should audience need to move away from
the site down roadways we will liaise with SEP our chosen traffic management company
to facilitate this.

To facilitate a 15-minute full site evacuation of the entire festival site, based on 15,000
people @ 80/m/minute requires a minimum exit width of 12.5m. Three emergency exits
will be available to use to exit the site. Each will be 7m this will be in addition to the main
entrance as we would need to assume that potentially one of these would be unavailable
in an emergency.

A full emergency plan will be developed during the planning of the event and will be
discussed at further meetings of the SAG.

The purpose of this Plan is to prepare and organise for the Damyns Hall Aerodrome
venue and the We Are event managers, to be able to conduct a time sensitive, safe,
secure, orderly and efficient evacuation of the venue, whilst providing an overall view of
the event management on site.

Potential emergencies, such as fires, explosions, bomb threats, chemical releases,
stand collapse etc. will require some or all of the staff, performers, teams, officials etc
and spectators to evacuate the venue or parts of it. The Plan will provide guidance for
the management, staff and spectators and will minimize threats to life and property.

This plan will apply to all potential emergencies at the venue that may require evacuation
of staff, performers, VIPs and audience to a place of safety. This plan relates to all users
of the venue.

Scope

This Emergency Management / Evacuation Plan shall cover those designated actions
that venue management, staff performers, teams, officials etc. and spectators must take
in order to ensure a safe and secure evacuation in the event of an emergency. This
extent of the coverage includes the structures within the venue, the perimeter and
grounds around the venue and the vehicle car park, either standard or VIP.

Page 71



The plan is multi hazard in scope and covers both natural and man caused hazards. It
will also cover the emergency evacuations of disabled spectators and the structural
enhancements to accommodate their movements.

Mission statement

To implement an orderly, safe and organised evacuation of the venue within the required
time if necessary. To ensure a safe and well managed event and to allow the safe and
timely egress of all patrons of the We Are festival event.

To allow us to meet our mission statement we will ensure:

There is adequate signage throughout the venue identifying emergency exits.

Good Telecommunication systems are in place within the venue.

Public Address system that can be heard throughout the venue, with loudhailers
available for areas not within direct public address range.

Sufficient staff have been trained and will be located in the sectors/evacuations areas
identified.

Evacuation routes are left clear of any obstruction

There are considerations for spectators with disabilities

Venue staff have been well exercised in the evacuation drills for the venue.

Emergency operations

Should a serious incident occur at the venue that required the facility to be evacuated,
the Police are to be advised immediately of the incident, and asked to respond to the
emergency and assist with the evacuation.

Ambulance and other emergency services are to be contacted immediately as the need
for their services have been identified.

Interoperability of the response agencies; evacuating the affected spectators safely to
the assembly area; monitoring and evaluation of the incident; is the responsibility of the
event manager on site.

Build up and breakdown

The event site will be closed to the public during the build and breakdown. The event site
will be enclosed using heras fencing thus creating a sterile area for work to be carried
out.

Hazard tape and signage will also be used to define hard-hat areas during the
build/breakdown on site. The event safety officer will monitor the hardhat areas to
ensure that contractors comply with PPE requirements.

Page 72



’,

%I parkifig m
Y

ar parkiexit

raft Map

Major Incident Plan

Although highly unlikely at an event of this kind which has an experienced event
management team, Lime Green Ltd and Continental Drifts feel that the process for
dealing with a major incident should be documented

This plan looks at the how the staff at the event would manage a major incident and
what additional resources may need to be assigned.

Declaring a major incident

The emergency liaison team, ELT will make the decision to declare a major incident. The
police would generally take the lead on this unless it was a medical or fire emergency in
which case the relevant member of the ELT would assume control.

Allocation of control

When a major incident is declared or the site condition has reached level ruby. The
transfer of command should be documented in the event log

The council emergency planning officer should be contacted and the event team should
regularly liaise with the EPO to determine any necessary support and to decide whether

Page 73



to continue to control the event from site or whether the EPO should take over the
management of the incident from an off site location.

There will be space within the ELT to host additional services or support staff as
necessary.

What constitutes a major incident

A major incident is any emergency that requires the implementation of special
arrangements by one or more of the emergency services, the NHS or the local authority
for:

(a) The rescue and transport of a large number of casualties:

(b) The involvement either directly or indirectly of a large number of people;

(c) The handling of a large number of enquiries likely to be generated both from the
public and the news media usually to the police;

(d) The need for the large scale combined resources of two or more of the emergency
services;

(e) The mobilisation and organisation of the emergency services and supporting
organisations, e.g. local authority, to cater for the threat of death, serious injury or
homelessness to a large number of people.

It will, in general, include the involvement either directly or indirectly of large numbers of
people, but usually the risk of a major incident has been identified as: -

Fire

Serious medical emergency

Controlled evacuation due to suspected incidents (i.e. fire, bomb warnings etc)
Overcrowding

Collapse of temporary structures

Catastrophic failure of permanent structures

In addition to the above, the major incident plan also recognises that external major
incidents, beyond the control of the event management team, may result in special
arrangements being implemented within the event by the event team. Examples of
these types of incidents are: -

Off site chemical incident

Major transport disruption

Extremes of weather

Crowd disturbance not attributed to the event.

Declaration of a Major Incident

All activities which happen once a major incident has been declared will have the
following aims:

Preserve life

Protect Property

Safeguard the wider environment

Ensure the safety of all staff and attendees at the event

Respond effectively to any given emergency

Reduce the impact on the local community

Ensure a high degree of public confidence through professional conduct of all staff.
Restore normality

Scope of a Major Incident

There are recommended sizes of cordon which are appropriate for different incidents.
These are listed below

Page 74



Suspicious Package 100m

Suspicious Vehicle 200m

Large Suspicious Vehicle 400m

LPG/Propane Fire >200m

These cordons may also require all or part of the show to be stopped, depending on
location.

Evacuation zones and Refuge areas
These will be determined at the event, dependent upon the nature and seat of any
emergency

Code words, evacuation and alert states
These are the same as in the emergency plan

Power supplies

If it is necessary to close all or any of the power supplies on site, any emergency
announcements should be made first if possible, security staff should then ensure
loudhailers are distributed to disseminate information.

Press and Artists

It is important to ensure that any sponsors, press and artists are incorporated into any
evacuation and the managers of these areas should be regularly updated as to any
situation

Emergency Vehicles

Should additional emergency vehicles be requested

Any access routes onto site should be cleared

The Access route and RV point for the vehicles should be decided

Stopping the Show

This should be a last resort as an action such as this can cause other problems such as
aggression within the crowd and unexpected surges/ crushing. Where possible the show
should continue whilst the incident is resolved

The event will operate two types of show stop as follows;

Change in Operational State

If a situation or incident develops to the point where the operational condition for the
event is changed to Orange and Event Control have consulted with all parties and feel
that the show should stop, the persons designated as being responsible for stopping the
show are the stage manager- under the direction of Reece Miller, Mel Wilds and the
head of security. If these people are unavailable this role can be undertaken by the
event safety officer . The overall site alert stage should go to orange in case there are
other problems resulting from this.

Security- immediate stopping of show

Should the stage/ pit security feel someones life is in danger they can immediately stop
the show via the stage manager. The ELT should then attend the site ASAP to decide
the next stage

Page 75



Roles and Responsibilities in a major incident

Havering Council
The role of the council at the event would include:
Work alongside the emergency services as necessary

Assessing the impact on the wider community

Managing the local authority and non emergency services response
Assist with provision of resources as necessary

Helping to restore normality in both the short and long term
Communication with other authorities and services as necessary
Provide assistance with post event care

Ask for military support if necessary

Liaise with government as necessary

Liaise with director of public health if necessary, particularly if there is a toxic hazard or
threat to public health

Local authorities and government departments do not operate at all times so there may
be a delay in some of the actions above
Event control should request local authority assistance as needed

Event stewards and security
Work alongside the emergency services to save life

Be observant and report any incidents or safety hazards
Evacuate the public under direction of the police and security manager
Assist the police for as long as necessary

Work to cordon of any areas as requested by the police
Specific roles as directed by the security manager at the event

Role of the Metropolitan Police
To preserve life

To co-ordinate the emergency services as needed

Establish and manage cordons as necessary

Investigate the incident and work alongside other services in this area
Work with the NHS to identify casualties and gather information
Identification of victims and the deceased.

Work to restore normality
Police should co-ordinate the press response to the situation; the event press office will
assist the police in this area

London Fire and Rescue Service
To save lives

Tackling of fires, containment of chemical spillages, and hazardous occurrences.
Rescue trapped casualties, working with the ambulance service

Advise on health and safety at the scene and within any cordon

Assist the police and ambulance service wherever needed

Work to restore normality

Page 76



A gridded site plan will be given to the fire brigade in advance of the event to assist with
incident management and access onto site in case of emergency

London Ambulance Service
To save life

To co-ordinate the medical response

To treat and care for casualties

To assist in rescue of trapped persons

Prioritise those to be evacuated

Liaise with hospitals receiving casualties

Transport of the sick and injured.

Work to decontaminate anyone affected by toxic substances

Work to restore normality
Co-ordinate and liaise with the on-site medical team
Work to assess casualty rates and pass this information to police media team

Site and event team
To assist the emergency services in saving life where necessary
Assist with evacuation as requested

Assist with information broadcasts as requested
Provide any technical expertise and site specific knowledge as requested
Work to restore normality

Site Locations

Incident Control

This should be run from the ELT where possible, unless this area is within a hazardous
zone when the incident room should be relocated. This would be decided at the time
dependant on the nature and seat of the emergency

Inner Cordon
A cordon will be put around any risk area, access to this area should be restricted. The
police will manage the cordon with the support of the security team

Outer Cordon
This will be to allow the flow of emergency vehicles and will be managed by the police
with assistance from the security team as required

Media Briefing Centre

Any media briefing should be done from the press area, there will be internet
connections and computer stations available in this area for any journalists to use as
needed. The council and police media teams should be kept informed of the situation

Hospital

London Ambulance Service will determine the hospital(s) to be used dependant on the
type of incident.

Page 77



Body Holding Area
It may in a serious incident be necessary to create a body holding area on site. This will
be decided by the ELT and the area should be secured by the security team on site.

Temporary Mortuary
The Emergency planning office for the council holds a borough plan for the location of
temporary mortuaries and will advise on suitable locations should this be necessary.

Friends & Relatives Reception Centre

It may be necessary to create a reception centre for friends and relatives, if this is the
case then the Emergency planning office for the council holds a borough plan for the
location of temporary mortuaries and should advise on suitable locations should this be
necessary.

Casualty Clearing Station
This may be necessary and should be sited dependant on the nature and seat of any
situation. The location of this must be communicated to the ELT.

Ambulance access points
First Aid positions within the event have been planned to allow for easy ambulance
access. Further casualty load areas can be created as required.

Survivor Area

It may be necessary to create a survivor area at the event, this should be separate to the
body holding area.

Any welfare facilities such as hot drinks, food etc should be brought to this area where
possible.

Page 78



Appendix 6-Crime reduction policy

A full and detailed crime reduction policy will be developed for later drafts of this plan in
conjunction with Lime Green Ltd, Met police, SB security and Continental Drifts.

The event organizers are taking a number of steps to reduce crime at the event which
include:

e Admission will be by ticket and wristband only. Guest pass holders will be in
possession of a valid ticket.

e All production and working staff will be in possession of valid accreditation
and enter only through designated entry points.

¢ No cash will change hands at the gates. There will be a ticket office on the
perimeter of the site for purchase on the day.

e Prohibited items including - Glass, cans, alcohol, illegal drugs and any item
deemed an offensive weapon will not be allowed onto the event site. No
professional cameras, video, or sound recording equipment will be allowed.
Stewards will not take possession of any item that a person wishes to leave.

e Nothing which may be deemed as offensive weapons will be allowed into the
site.

e No pass outs from the event will be allowed during the event except for
medical or emergency purposes.

e Bins will be provided by the event organiser for the collection of any items
that are refused entry into the concert arena. Regular emptying of bins and
skips, in addition general cleaning around entrance gates will be undertaken
during the course of the event to ensure good housekeeping practice,
maintain clear exit routes and to maintain a sterile environment for security
purposes.

To support crime reduction at the event the organizers will enforce the Conditions of
Entry listed below- These will be advertised in advance and on the gate
No Dogs except guide dogs
No professional recording equipment
No Under 18’s
No Glass bottles
Non alcoholic beverages in glass bottles discovered at entry points will be decanted into
plastic cups
No alcohol to be brought into the event
Any alcohol will be confiscated
No illegal substances
Anyone found in possession of illegal substances will be handed over to the police
No Knives or weapons of any kind
Immediate confiscation on discovery
Any persons found with a knife or weapon will be arrested
No Fireworks
Immediate confiscation on discovery
All bags will be searched
All persons on-site may be searched through a targeted search policy
Unsociable behaviour or intimidation will not be tolerated
Perpetrators may be removed from the event, police may be called if necessary
The organisers reserve the right to refuse admission.

Page 79



Appendix 7
On site safety controls

Continental Drifts require contractors to:

Understand their general responsibilities towards the audience, fellow event workers
and themselves

Inform Continental Drifts of any serious safety incidents occurring within the last 3
years and the results of these incidents.

Carry out risk assessments of their work activities

Provide a method statement which will be followed whilst on site.

Ensure that copies of risk assessments, method statements, safety policy and
insurance details are given to the organisers with any tender and that a copy of these
is brought to the event.

Ensure that persons under their control know the fire and emergency procedures for
the site and the locations of the appropriate type of portable fire appliances

To ensure that the means of escape are not obstructed

To ensure that all portable and transportable electrical equipment has been tested
To ensure that personal protective equipment is worn when necessary and that it is
suitable and properly maintained

Co operate with the site safety rules and procedures

Co-operate and share information on health and safety with other contractors while
on site

Ensure drivers (of site vehicles such as lift trucks and specialist vehicles) under their
control have received the appropriate operator training

Ensure that all work equipment and lifting equipment is maintained, serviced and
used in accordance with the Provision and Use of Work Equipment Regulations
(PUWER) 1999 and the Lifting Operations and Lifting Equipment Regulations
(LOLER) 1989

Report all hazards and incidents

Lighting and Signage

The site will be provided with adequate and sufficient lighting and emergency lighting
in line with relevant British Standard

The site will be adequately sign posted to avoid confusion

Exit and directional signs shall conform to the Health and Safety (Signs and Signals)
Regulations 1996

Fire warning systems shall comply with British Standards

Communication

The organisers will put into place a command and communications structure that allows
clear and effective communication between the various disciplines involved in the event.
The organisers will also ensure they have a clear line of communication with the
emergency services and council.

Telephone Hot Line
An outside telephone line will be based within the TA building and all complaints from
the public will be formally recorded and investigated.

Page 80



Radio

« Different disciplines to use dedicated frequencies to aid clear communication with 2
frequencies used for emergency situations only.

e All radio operators will be trained in their use.

e Coded messages will be been identified for use in emergency situations.

e The power source of the incident control room will have an independent backup in
case of site power failure to ensure communication is not lost

¢ Radios will be ordered with 2 fully charged batteries and tested prior to the event

e Operators in the control Centre will have adequate rest breaks

¢ The radio communications network will be backed up with a list of mobile phone
numbers of key personnel

Communications with the public
Proper provision will be made for the effective communication with the public including a
procedure to ensure that broadcast music can be silenced in an emergency.

Barriers

Barriers serve twin purposes at an event

e To provide physical security

e To relieve and prevent the build up of crowd pressures

The siting and nature of barriers will be determined by an assessment carried out by the
site manager in consultation with the other event organisers, particularly the chief
steward and the safety consultant. The emergency services and officers of the council
will also be consulted

The assessment will take into account: -

The advice given by the emergency services and officers of the local Council
All statutory requirements for guarding machinery

The design of barriers in front of stages

Previous experience and knowledge about the audience

All barriers used on site will: -

e Be clearly marked on the site plan submitted to the Council for approval prior to the
licence being granted

e Will be of sound construction, be in a good state of repair, and be fit for the purpose

e Conform to the load bearing specifications laid down in Institution of Structural
Engineers document Temporary demountable structures: Guidance on procurement
and use

Temporary Structures

e ltis recognised that the failure of any temporary structure could have devastating
effects

e To control the risk, the organisers will plan and monitor the contractors supplying the
temporary structures to ensure the structures are designed to adequate standards, in
a good state of repair and that they are erected and taken down using safe working
practices

o Inline with The Management of Health and Safety at Work Regulations 1999, the
organisers will require all contractors to supply in advance written risk assessments
and to have identified the most appropriate means of reducing those risks

Page 81



e The safety co-ordinator will check the suitability of these risk assessments and the
control measures proposed by the contractor and give advice on improvements were
necessary on :

e Protecting erectors against falling

Protection of erectors from falling objects

Compliance with the Manual Handling Operations Regulations 1992

Compliance with Lifting Operations and Lifting Equipment Regulations 1998

Compliance with the Provision and Use of Work equipment regulations 1999

All suppliers of temporary demountable structures used on site will be required to
e Design concept and statement which will include:-
e A statement of what the structure is intended to do
e Alist of items or connections that require particular checking each time the
structure is erected
o Details of the methods of transferring all horizontal forces back to the ground

e Construction drawings which will include:-
e Full calculations
e Design loads
e Relevant test results
e Risk assessments covering the design and erection
o Safety method statement
e Completion certificate

Stages

« Ali stages exceeding 56m2 will have a means of escape at each side of the stage

e They will have handrails on all edges, ramps and stairs

e The front edge of all stages will be marked with a 50mm white line

e They will be able to carry a point load of 22 newtons per square metre over a 50mm
by 50mm area without causing damage to the floor and without causing excessive
deflection of floor panels. (Defined as a defiection of no more than 10cm relative to
adjoining panels)

Marquees and Large Tents

e All marquees and large tents will be supplied by known reputable contractors

e They shall be capable of withstanding expected wind forces and bad weather
conditions

e Contractors will be selected in part because of their experience in marquees

e Guy ropes are adjusted as weather conditions have a great effect on the marquees'’
load bearing capacity

e The contractor for any large structure will be on site throughout the event ensuring
the tent is adjusted to take into account any change in the atmospheric conditions
and to be on hand if it is necessary to lower the structure in adverse winds

All marquees and large tents will have to carry proof that flame-retarded materials have

been used.

New manufactured membranes and fabrics should be of inherently flame retarded fabric

or durably flame retarded fabric when tested to BS 7837. Fabrics tested to BS 5438,

tests 2A and 2B, with a 10 second flame application time in each case continue to be

acceptable. (The method of test described in BS 7157 is also acceptable). Other sheet

Page 82



materials should be Class | surface spread of flame in accordance with BS 476: Part 7.
Materials should be free of flaming molten droplet characteristics and should not readily
support combustion. All membranes and fabric should be so labelled.

¢ Contractors to follow MUTA- Best practice guide 2009

Electrical Safety

Electrical Systems

The Continental Drifts production team recognise the grave nature of risk from electric

shock and the part electrical equipment can play in the starting of fires, and in order to

control this risk will appoint an experienced site electrician.

Ensuring that:

 All electrical equipment and installations on the site will conform to the Electricity at
Work Regulations 1989 and follow the advice given in BS7909 Code of Practice for
temporary distribution systems

o All instaliations will be installed, tested and maintained in accordance with the
Institution of Electrical Engineers "Regulations for Electrical Installations” which now
form part of British Standard (BS) 7671 "the Regulations for Wiring Installations "

A Risk assessment will be carried out by the Site Electrician that will take into account:-
e Total electrical requirements of the event

e The need in certain areas for an independent power supply
e Compatibility of equipment to be used
o The design and types of electrical connectors to be used by performers
e Use of low voltage equipment (110 volts)
Installation

e Al electrical installations will be installed so non-authorised personnel and members
of the public, cannot interfere with them

o Where possible sufficient fixed socket outlets are provided within the stage area to
reduce the usage of extension leads. All equipment is located within 2 metres ofa
socket outlet to prevent the risk of tripping on long cables.

« All equipment that is exposed to the elements will be suitably constructed and
protected.

e Where electricity has to be used in high risk areas, such as wet conditions, or where
trailing sockets are not designed to make and break on load, the guidance contained
in British Standard"specification for industrial plugs, socket outlets and couplers etc."
will be followed.

Cabling

e Cables, where possible, will be routed or buried so they do not become tripping
hazards or be crushed by vehicular traffic.

e All cabling that may cause an electric shock if damaged, will be protected from sharp
edges or crushing by ensuring that it is armoured or that it is carried overhead.

e While cabling can be buried just under the surface of the sod the risk assessment
process will identify areas where the cable will need to be buried deeper to ensure it
is not accidentally damaged by tent pegs, posts etc.

Page 83



Where overhead cables are used, it should be securely put in place and supported
by a cautionary wire which is out of reach of the public and does not place strain on
the connectors.

All power distribution cables used on site will be checked so they conform with the
relevant British standard and are sized in accordance with the IEE Wiring
Regulations 16" Edition.

All cables used on stage or for stage equipment will be flexible rubber or plastic
insulated and ssiteed as specified in the relevant British standard, or is of equivalent
or superior quality.

Access to Control Systems

The Site Electrician and the Safety Advisor will ensure that a clear working space is
provided to facilitate access to all control switches and equipment.

That the main controls are clearly marked and their location marked on the site plan
provided to the Council and the Emergency Services.

That the electrical supply to stages and marquees are readily accessible to
authorised personnel.

That adequate lighting is safely provided during the hours of darkness to facilitate the
safe entry and egress and working environment for site crew before and after the
event.

Generators and Transformers

All generators that are 3 phase will have to carry an up to date test certificate. All
generators will be earthed in line with guidance given in British Standard 7430 Code
of practice for earthing

All generators including those belonging to traders will be inspected by the Site
Electrician and their location marked on the site plan given to the Council and the
Emergency Services.

Residual Current Devices and Other Equipment

All items of electrical equipment will be checked to ensure that they are fitted with an
easily identifiable means of isolation. Any electrical equipment used in association
with hand held devices will be protected by a miniature circuit breaker and a residual
current device (RCD) having a 30 ma tripping current and installed on a distribution
board. The Site Electrician will ensure that the RCDs are tested before the event.
Once the Site Electrician will sign a hand over certificate confirming that all testing
has been completed and that in his professional opinion the electrical system is safe
to use and that risks posed to employees and public has been adequately controlled
so far is as reasonably practicable.

If the Site Electrician is unhappy with any items of equipment they shall not be used
The site electrician will be on site or on call for the duration of the event from set up
to striking site.

Accidents and Emergencies
Accident Reporting

All accidents to the general public will be formally recorded by the first aid facility in
the accident book B1510.

Continental Drifts will ensure that all appointed contractors have adequate accident
reporting systems in place as part of their contractor selection process

Page 84



o If a member of the general public is injured the safety consultant will investigate the
accident and ensure the relevant F2508 form is sent to the enforcing authority

Fire Safety, Emergency Procedures and Medical Provision

The organisers of the event recognise the risk posed to employees, contractors,
performers and members of the public from fire at events and recognise their duty to
plan for emergencies.

The Fire Brigade and the Safety Officer will be consulted on the design and layout of
event sites and the entry and exit points.

A risk assessment will be carried out on the need for portable fire fighting equipment for
each event, once the organisers have the relevant details about the location of
identifiable risk areas

The risk assessment will take account of:

e The advice of the Site Electrician on, the location of generators, power distribution

control areas, items of electrical equipment such as mixing desks.

e The need for portable fire fighting equipment in temporary structures

Noise

Noise at work

e Sound Engineers will be responsible for monitoring sound levels in performance
areas and identify ear protection zones

« They will also ensure that effected staff receive the relevant advice and guidance on
ear protection down in the Noise at work Regulations 1989

Noise Leakage from Event Sites.

e Guidance will be sought from officers of the Council/ Vanguardia on measures that
can be taken to reduce noise leakage from event sites.

e Vanguardia have been appointed to give every assistance to Noise Control Officers
that will be monitoring the event

e The consultant will assist in the setting of noise limits at the edge of the site and will
ensure that any complaint passed on by the Council will be dealt with promptly

o Sensitivity to any residential properties will be paramount in the creation of the site
plan and placing of sound sources.

Welfare and Facilities

e The organisers will ensure that adequate facilities for welfare, first aid, the provision
of drinking water are provided at events

e The provision of sanitary arrangements in line with the guidance given in the Event
safety guide

e The provision of chill out areas as part of the entertainment

o Ensure that adequate welfare facilities are provided for stewards and other members
of staff

Environmental Protection

o All rubbish will be cleared from event sites and where practicable, recycled.

e Rubbish will be stored in a secure area and be collected within 24 hours of the finish

e All efforts will be made not to disturb livestock, wildlife or their habitats during events

e The risk assessment will be drawn up after further consultation with the fire brigade
to ensure that potential risk areas are not missed, thus ensuring that the risk of fire is
adequately controlied to the satisfaction of the fire brigade and the council.

Page 85



Other Fire Controls

We will ensure that the grass is cut short just prior an event and the cuttings taken off
the site.

We will carry our regular fire patrols by stewards and the regular disposal of rubbish
from bins and the storage of rubbish outside the site

The rigorous control of traders to limit the risk from petrol generators and from petrol
storage, by limiting the amount allowed stored on site and ensuring that it is stored in
suitable containers in designated areas

Ensuring that curtains, drapes and other materials that are made from durable or
inherently flame retardant will conform with British Standard (BS) 5867

Ensuring that curtains, drapes and other materials that are made from non durable
fabric conforms with British Standard (BS) 5867 and are accompanied by a test
certificates

Ensuring that Liquid petroleum Gas bottles are used in accordance with the Gas
Safety (Installation and Use) Regulations 1998

All LPG on site will be handled and stored in accordance with LP Gas Association
Code of Practice, Use of LPG cylinders in mobile catering vehicles and similar
commercial units 1996 and that all gas equipment brought on site has a gas safety
certificate

That LPG bottles are secured in place and cannot fall over when in use

We will develop an emergency evacuation plan and ensure all necessary assistance
and co-operation is given to the members of the emergency services. This will include
the instruction and training on what to do in the event of an emergency, coded
messages, and how to act on them.

We will have adequate communications to ensure that emergency situations can be
dealt and if the need arises that we can communicate effectively with the emergency
services.

First Aid and Medical Arrangemenfs

We will appoint a first aid and medical contractor at all events to carry out a risk
assessment in line with advice laid out in the Event safety guide.

A risk assessment will be carried out on our behalf by the contractor that will take into
account the following factors:-

e Size, duration and nature of the audience

Nature and type of entertainment

Location and nature of the venue

Seasonal/weather factors

Any additional activities and attractions

Proximity, size and capability of local medical facilities
Experience of similar events

Other welfare facilities on site

Range of major incident hazards at or associated with the event

Trading Concessions (Market Traders and Food Traders)
The hazards associated with market traders will be controlied by a procedure whereby: -

Known traders who have a bad safety record at previous events are not invited to
trade at Continental Drifts events.

Page 86



All aspects of registration and food handling to be sent to the organiser in advance so
a list of traders can be given to environmental services

All food traders will be registered with their home authority and comply with the
requirements of the Food Hygiene Regulations

At the booking stage traders are told they cannot bring petrol generators. Site power
is offered to traders for a small charge.

Traders’ stalls needing lighting or power for any purpose will carry a fire fighting
equipment

All traders using LPG will comply with current gas safety legislation.

Traders will only be permitted to store enough LPG (Liquid Petroleum Gas) for a 24-
hour period or 200 kg, whichever is leas

Page 87



Appendix 8- Vulnerable Persons Protection Plan

Continental Drifts is an event and production company specialising in large scale
outdoor festivals and events as well as producing events for Media, PR, and
communications companies. We also have one of the largest agencies for street and
circus performers in the country. We often produce events with a strong community arts
element and work closely with many companies running workshops in a variety of art
forms as part of our one off events.

Lost Persons Procedure on site

If a vulnerable person is found then they should be taken by security to the Lost
Person’s tent. Here they will be met by a member of staff who is CRB checked and their
details will be taken including where they were found and their description. An
announcement should then be made to staff only telling them that a Moses was found in
the region of xxx approximate age... Full details should not be given over the radio. If the
person knows a relevant phone number then Lost Person’s staff will attempt to call it. If
the person is still lost and appears to be vulnerable or unable to be released alone after
2 hours they should be handed over to the police.

*If the person found has been a victim of crime, police should be notified immediately
and a representative of the police should come to the Lost Persons tent to take a report
and remove the person if appropriate. Bronze Crime to be advised.

If a carer has lost their vulnerable person they should be taken to a member of security
where full details of the vulnerable person will be taken and radioed through to security
control, this information should then be passed to the police/ event control. An
announcement should then be made to staff that we are looking for a Moses, with the
description and general area where last seen. Carers who wish to help in the search of
their vulnerable person should be allowed to do so, however their phone number should
be taken and they must be asked to inform the security or production office if they are re-
united with their child/ vulnerable person. All staff should then be on the look out for the
vulnerable person.

To re-unite a carer with their vulnerable person, they must give a full and accurate
description of that person. Staff should be on hand when re-unification takes place and a
release form should be signed before the vulnerable person is taken away.

Lost persons registration, identification and release form available for inspection if
required

Philosophy and principles
Continental Drifts and Lime Green Ltd are committed to protecting vulnerable

people in ensuring that their welfare is paramount in every project that we run in
the community.

o All vulnerable people whatever their age, culture, disability, gender, language,
racial origin, religious beliefs and/or sexual identity have the right to protection
from abuse.

« All suspicions and allegations of abuse will be taken seriously and responded to
swiftly and appropriately.

Page 88



e All staff will be aware of the vulnerable persons protection policy. They will be
signed up to the policy and will understand their responsibilities and procedures
concerning how to respond appropriately.

o All carers have the right to feel safe when entrusting their vulnerable people to
Continental Drifts or anyone who works at our events care.

e Al vulnerable people have the right to have fun and be protected when
participating in activities they, or their carers have chosen.

Vulnerable person Protection Policies

e At the outset of each project Continental Drifts will carry out a risk assessment
and monitor risk throughout the life of the project.

o Staff will engage in effective recruitment, including appropriate vetting of staff and
volunteers. All relevant staff and volunteers will be required to have an enhanced
CRB check.

e Continental Drifts will support confidentiality in line with the data protection act
1998 and will not hand out any information about employees/artists or arts
facilitators to other organisations. Continental Drifts is committed to artists rights.

o |If staff are concerned regarding the welfare of the person this should be reported
to social services.

e Continental Drifts will keep up to date with health and safety regulations in artistic
practice and will comply with all updated changes in legislation and policies for
protection for vulnerable people and children.

e Continental Drifts will provide relevant training and development when
necessary.

e Continental Drifts will ensure all employees are aware of the indicators of abuse
and neglect of vulnerable people.

e |tis essential that there at least two responsible adults in the room at all times
with a vulnerable person.

Accidents and Injuries

e If a vulnerable person is injured whilst under Continental Drifts’ care or whilst
involved in our projects a record will be taken in the accident report book.

e If a vulnerable person arrives at the tent with an obvious physical injury a record
will need to be made in the accident book.

Conduct with vulnerable people

e All staff, volunteers or project leaders will keep a safe and appropriate distance
from participants, and not engage in any inappropriate physical contact.

e Only touch participants when absolutely necessary to the particular arts activity.
Agreement should be sought from participants prior to any physical contact.

¢ Do not make sexually suggestive comments even in fun.

e Always treat vulnerable people with equal respect and dignity. The welfare of
each individual should always be put before the goals of the project.

e All feedback shall be encouraging, enthusiastic and constructive and no project

leader will engage in negative criticism.

Never shout at a vulnerable person.

Always work in an open environment and avoid private or unobserved situations.

If someone initiates physical contact deflect them if possible.

Do not under any circumstances give out personal contact details.

Page 89



What to do if a vulnerable person discloses abuse.

If they have been a victim of crime, police should be notified immediately

Look directly at the vuinerable person

Accept what the vulnerable person says

Be aware that the vulnerable person may have been threatened

Tell the vulnerable person they are not to blame

Do not press for information.

Reassure the vulnerable person they are right to tell you and that you take what
they say seriously.

Do not promise to keep the information they have disclosed a secret.

Let them know what you are going to do next, who you are going to tell and why,
and roughly what will happen.

Finish on a positive note.

As soon as possible afterwards, make hand written notes of exactly what the
vulnerable person said and the date and time.

Action to be taken

Do Not delay

Do not act alone

Do not start to investigate

Inform Continental Drifts management team of your concerns immediately.
The Management team will discuss with the relevant bodies what action should
be taken.

A meeting may need to take place and a written record will be noted.
Continental Drifts will inform social services of the disclosure that will liaise with
the relevant departments on a need to know basis and will, if appropriate, inform
the police. It is the responsibility of the authorities to determine whether abuse
has occurred.

Further information guidance can be found at:

Keeping arts safe www.artscouncil.org.uk

Criminal records protection bureau line 0870 909 0811 www.crb.gov.uk
Disclosure service www.disclosure.gov.uk

Child protection on the internet www.wiseuptpthenet.co.uk

Page 90



Appendix 9-Continental Drifts company safety policy

We, the management of Continental Drifts recognise the legal duties of care, as outlined
in the Health and safety at Work Act 1974, to ensure our undertaking and work activities
do not adversely affect the health, safety and well-being of our employees, contractors,
the public attending events and anyone else that may be affected by our acts or
omissions.

Continental Drifts has installed a Safety Management System (SMS) in-line with the
requirements of the Management Regulations 1999, and advice given in HG65 The
Principles of safety Management.

We intend to use legal requirements as a minimum on which we can make
improvements to our safety performance.

Continental Drifts will give safety management equal status with other business
functions such as marketing

To this end we will ensure that hazards, in our office premises have been identified and
assessed. Where possible, risks have been eliminated and those that remain are
controlled and managed so they do not present a significant danger to employees and
visitors.

Ensure that an accident/incident reporting procedure is in place and all accidents,
incidents or diseases outlined in RIDDOR 1995 are reported to the enforcing authority.
We further recognise that when working on productions our business activities expand to
include the working activities of contractors. When working on productions we will
undertake to: -

e Select competent contractors, and include safety performance as a selection
criterion.

o Ensure all contractors have suitable and sufficient risk assessments and safe
working procedures.

Pro-actively monitor contractors’ safe working procedures during the event.

e Investigate, or co-operate with others investigating, any accident/incidents
involving employees, contractors and those attending the event.

e Ensure when designing the layout of all temporary demountable structures,
barriers and cable runs that they are intrinsically safe and the safety of the public,
artists, crew and employees is considered at the design stage.

¢ Ensure that employees and contractors are familiar with the site accident
and incident reporting procedure.

¢ Ensure all temporary demountable structures hired for the event conform to alll
statutory guidance and relevant British or European Standards.

o Ensure employees and contractors are provided with adequate sanitary, welfare
and first aid/medical provision.

e Ensure that there are adequate resources, financial or otherwise, allocated for
health and safety purposes.

e Ensure that all employees receive adequate training and instruction so they are
competent to carry out their duties with the Safety Management System.

e We understand that no SMS will succeed without the involvement of employees
and contractors. We urge them to give full co —operation to Continental Drifts in the
management of safety.

Signed: M.J.Wilds (Director)
Date12/6/12

Page 91



Production Company Continental Drifts Roles and Responsibilities

Event Manager & Continental Drifts Managing Director

Ultimately responsible for health and safely.

Ensuring adequate resources are put into health and safety.

Ensure all employees receive adequate training and instruction.

Keeping up to date with changes in regulations, guidance and industry best
practice.

Obtaining expert advice on issues of health and safety when required.
Ensuring health and safety has a high profile within Continental Drifts and set a
personal example.

Production Co-ordinator

Select competent contractors (where not already chosen by the client).

Design and layout temporary demountable structures and temporary services so
they are intrinsically safe following advice in The Event safety Guide HSG 195
1999.

Co ordinate contractors and crews work activities so they do not clash.
Familiarise themself with contractors risk assessments and monitor contractors
working practices.

Ensure the recording and investigating accidents that occur on site.

Ensure accidents/incidents and specific diseases are reported to the relevant
enforcing authority, as per RIDDOR 95.

Ensure contractors are given adequate information about the site access, egress,
emergency and evacuation procedures, welfare and sanitary provisions.

Ensure all contractors are made aware of the site traffic system and site safety
rules.

Give full co-operation to the officers of the Council and Emergency Services.

Craft & Catering Stalls Co-ordinator

Contract all craft and catering stalls for festival.

Ensure stallholders are properly certified and insured and follow all safe working
procedures, practices and site safety rules.

Attend any site safety training and toolbox talks.

Give full co-operation to the officers of the Council and Emergency Services.
Raising all health and safety issues that may arise, with a senior member of staff.

Production Office Manager

Responsible for general production office management.

Responsible for managing communications through radio control and telephone.
Recording and investigating accidents/incidents and complaints/queries
regarding the event production.

Site Manager

Assist the production manager with contractor management on site.

Follow all safe working procedures, practices and site safety rules.

Assist the project manager in giving information and instruction to contractors.
Attend any site safety training and toolbox talks.

Page 92



e Give full co-operation to the officers of the Council and Emergency Services.

e Raising all health and safety issues that may arise, with a senior member of staff.

Site Crew

e The crew are responsible for raising all health and safety issues that may arise,
with a senior member of staff, and reporting any hazards or incidents to the
production office.

e Co-operate with managers in the implementing of safe working procedures,
practices and site safety rules.

« Give full co-operation to the officers of the Council and Emergency Services.

The Safety Committee

The safety performance at each event shall form part of the debriefing session.
Debriefing will include the managing director, project manager and site co-ordinator,
contractors, client and crew.

Environmental Policy

The company seeks to be a leader of good environmental practice within the events
industry.

Continental Drifts and Lime Green Ltd are committed to :

Operating in strict accordance with relevant laws, regulations and professional codes

of practice.

Recognising and protecting natural habitats and environmentally sensitive areas.
Minimising the effect upon the environment of our organisation and events.
Achieving continual improvement in our environmental performance.

Operating in an open manner and encouraging feedback on our environmental
performance.

Recycling waste where possible.

Educate and train our employees to conduct their activities in an environmentally
friendly way.

Working closely with regulatory bodies, environmental organisations and all other
interested parties on environmental issues.

To achieve our aims we will:

Use energy efficient light-bulbs and machinery.

Use re-cycled materials where possible.

Ensure all waste is recycled where possible.

Avoid the use of hazardous substances when possible.

Ensure any hazardous substances when used are stored and disposed of safely.
Recycle old equipment and furniture whenever possible.

Use timber from renewable sources.

Use alternative energy sources where possible.

Use organic and bio-degradable products where possibie.

Look for ethical and fair trade suppliers.

Encourage employees to walk, cycle or use public transport whenever possible.
Avoid battery-powered products.

When battery products are used, ensuring waste is properly disposed of.

Use solvent free products when possible.

Be vigilant in clearing litter.

Avoid causing a noise nuisance.

Page 93



Appendix 10- Noise Management plan- see additional document

Appendix 11- Traffic Plan: We Are Festival- to follow
-to follow however please see below confirmation that SEP Ltd will provide this service.

E-Mail Date: 18t July 2012
High Moor Yard
High Moor Road
Boroughbridge
North Yorkshire
YO51 9DZ
Tel: 01423 326622
Fax: 01423 324006
info @ sepevents.co.uk
www.SEPevents.co.uk

Dear Mel

Re: We Are Festival 251 May 2013

After our recent site meeting and initial discussion on the 25w June 2012 at Damyns Hall, 1 can
confirm that SEP Ltd will provide a transport management plan for your event.

Following discussions and development of the plan through a multi-agency group we will quote
for the scope of works detailed within the plan for your event.

SEP Ltd provide this full traffic management service for many large and small events across the
UK including:

Goodwood Festival of Speed

Goodwood Revival

V Festival (Staffordshire)

Download Festival

The Grand National at Aintree

Formula 1 at Silverstone

Wakestock Festival

Cartmel Races

Badminton Horse Trials

And many more

Our client list can be seen on our website www.sepevents.co.uk

Due to current work commitments, including the Olympics, | will be able to look at version 1 of the
TMP towards the end of September.

Yours sincerely

On behalf of SEP Ltd

Gary McCaffrey

Page 94



"ydw G JO SUOfoL}Sal paads S)is BAIRSqO [[eys JIen IVt
‘ssed 9joIYsA & yim payiew AJes|d Sa|dIysp S

‘Allinoes

pue Jobeue a1 AQ pa|joiu0d pue Wes | Uoionpold
Aq papiosp sk Ajuo oiyjel) |euassa o} oiyel] asIWIUIN - g

*8lIs uo 1dey| aq 0} ayeolue0 bulues

jo saidoa pue Buurel; jo jooud ‘siojelado jue|d Anesy 3 abeweq "‘Ainfui 10/
a|qeqoaduwj JO 9SBO 8y} Ul pue ‘SIBALP B[0IYaA pasuadl| Ajuo s | a|geqoid angav ‘lere4 pue uois|jjoo Jo ysiy |
|oJjuon [STETER
laye S$|0JU0) INoYM p3loajly asen
pooyieyi saJnseayy |04uo) pooyiayI sdnoun 1SI0M sty / piezeH

‘peoy Asjeay uo aq |im (o1qnd

J1oy) Ajuo uxs sy "ewolpolo. 8y} Jo Yinos sy} 0} sue] yomiepp uo dn pauado Buieq souenue ayi yim ooeld ojul Ind weisAs Aem auo e aaey o) pauue|d

1 Jl JusA® 8y} Jo Aep 8y} UQ 'BWO.IPOISE By} Jo slesn Jejnbal pue S10}OBIIU0D [BAISS) BY} AQ paleys aq [[IM 20UBLUS 8)IS 8U) UMOP &3e] pue pjing ayi Buung
eld Aresy ‘Jajpueys|s} ‘(uressa) ybnoua) yonuy Yi| Y10} ‘SILI0] ‘SUBA ‘SIED — 8PN[OUl JUSLUSSSSSE SIU) Ul S9|0IyaA Jo sedA |

"Ino peo| pue pjing ays Buipnjou| *(swoipolay |[eH suAweq) aoe|dyiom ayy ul Bunelado sejoiysp

a|qeqoaduw) ajoway a|qissod a|geqo.d juanbauy IS|0JIUOD UM pooyi[dayi|

“iSH1 9y} asiwiulWw IO d)ed|peld 0} Uad) e} SaInsea| 1SaINSEesfy |00

ajqeqoaduw) ajowiay a|qissod a|geqold juanbaiy :]OJJUOD INOYHM pooyijaNi]
lopsiA (3) wald (a) allgand (9) 1030es3U0D (8) aakojdw3z (v) :pajdayy dnoiH
abeweq Ainfuj oN Jouip Jolepy lereq :AJ119A3S 9SED 1SIOM

duop aq ||IM wiey eyl pooy!|axl| ayi S| Sy

‘wiey ashes o} buiyjawos 1oy jenusajod ayy Tpiezeq

€102 [eAlsa4 a1y 9\ O} JUBAS|SY - [00VHAVM JUdWISSassy Ysiy
€102 aunp awiAg wi Aq ua)enapun LOOVHIVM JUSWISSISSY YSiY
€102 AeN y182-y19Z  umopjeaig
€102 Aep wipe-1s1z  pling
€102 Aey yigz weAg :sajeq
palwi usaly awi Jo jfeyaq uo syuQ [elusaunuos :uasiueblip

L0OVHAV M JUSWSS3SSY NSIY S3|IIYaA 3d8|d HIOM — €10C [eAl}sa] aly 9
ueld JuswabeuBW JUSAS 8Y] JO JEIP IX8U 8y} 810joq papuswie o4 jiMm PUE Yeip iSllj e 8Je SJUSWSSISSE XSl asall] 'gN
sjuawIssasy sy -¢1 xipuaddy

Page 95



SI 101l 8UQ "@duenUS O} peol Jo apIs ajsoddo
UO JOLIW X8AUOD Jayloue Bulppe puswiiosay

d[qIssod

o4dav

lofepy
‘[ered

‘peoy Asjony
— @oueljud BUS G

ejoway

“uodsuel}

JO 9}NOJ pUe SUBSLW }S9JES UIBUAOSE 0} UoIjusjie
[e1oads paau |Im swall Aneay Jo uonepodsuel |
‘paAIasqo

aq isnw jiwi| paeds ydw G 8y} aus uo IsiIym
"JUBAS 3y} 1B S3[OIYSA

Aue Buisn 210§9q UIB1I9} PUB SUOIJIPUOD SSOSSY

a|q1ssod

aosgyv

[eled

‘BUILINUDAO SPDIYBA ¥

ajoway

‘JisuBd Ul is|iym

paAoW sey i JI 88s 0} peo] %08Y2 a|qissod aIsyp
‘sa|o1yan jo Buipeojun pue Buipeo)

8y} Jo} pajuawaldul 8q 0} }I0m JO SWalsAs ajes
"Hsuel} Ul

Juswanow juanslid o} Ajgrenbape painoss eq 0} SpeoT

s|qissod

adyv

Jolepy

"9[oIyeA
wouy Bulle} spelqo e

aj0way

"JU9AD 8y} 1o} pasn Buleq a[o1yaA Aue jo yoeq ayl 1o
BpIs ayj} Uo apll auo Aue |feys saouBSWNOLID OU Japun
"UIOM 8Q JShul s}ieqieas panl alayp

‘9[qissod

agyv

Joley

sa|oIyan woyy Buljieq 'z

‘selyed |e 0] pajediunwwod
uay) pue ‘siebeuew saiuedulod Juaas ayl Aq spew
aq 0} JUsWaA0W S|2IYSA OU, dY} }I| O} UOISIoep 8y |

'sa[oIyan Aousbiawsa pue

JUBAD [enuasse Jo uondeoxa syl yum Aoljod Juswaaouwl
9[0IYaA 0U, J0LI]S & 8q |IM 818y} Juaas Buung

‘g|qissod aleym

sinoy ybiAep apisino paploAe 8q 0} JUSWSAOW B|2IUSA

-olesedas 1doy oq [m ssalbe

pue sse20e uel)sepad pue a|2IyaA 8|qissod Janalaym
‘Aem yoel] Alelodwa] pue

speol paysiiqelss asn 0} S3[oIYaA ‘a|qissod Janaloym
"IN0 pue uj paubis aq 0} sAa) BjoIYaA

"SYIYS JO pue pue

sawl} yealq Bunnp paddols aq 0} S3[0IYDA JO JUBWIBAO
‘pahe|dsip aq 01 abeubis tes|n

‘wieysAs Buluiem asiaAal yum papl 8q o} ajqissod
alayp\ "1epJlo Bunjiom punos u pasjuelent pue

painsul 8g 0} JUSAD U] J0} pases| 10 pasn Sa|IUSA

<t

H

0l

‘S

Page 96



Aq pessaooe seale wol) Aeme 1dey oq O} sunl 8|ged g
‘dwel s|qed 8|qelns Aq palonoo ale 3 "Joulw se|qen T
a|qeqodu| Asyl 1ey) Aem e yons ui pebeuew aq 0} suni 9|qed Iy "L a|qeqold angav ‘lolepy Buiddu g buiddiis
[oajuo) Ayianag
Jaye S|0JJU0S INOYHM | pajodjly ase)
pooyiayi sainseayy |[04U0) pooyiajI sdnouy 1SI0M )siYy / plezeH
ajqeqoadw) ajoway a|qissod a|qeqo.d juanbauy S[OJJU0D UM pooylia)I|
HSH 9y} asiwiuiw 10 3jedIpeId 0} usye) sainsealy 'SoINSeajy 010D
a|qeqoaduw ajoway a|qissod ajgeqo.id juanbauy 7[OJ3UO0D INOUNM POOYI|dN I
lousiA (3) walo (a) aignd () 1o30enuo) (g) aakojdwz (v) pajosjy dnoiH
abeweq Ainfu] oN IoUIN Jofepny |eled AJ1I9ASS 9SeD 1SIOM
*auop aq [|Im wuey jey) pooyliayl] syl st SiH
‘wiey asned o} Buiyjawos Joj [enuajod ay} piezeq
€102 |eAlsad aly 9\ O JUBAd|3Y - 200VHIVM JUSWISSASSY }SIH
2102 aunp auwiAg wiy Aq ua)epapun Zo0VHAVM JUdWSsassy ysiy
€102 AeN U182-4192  umopeaiq
gLoz Aen .2z PIIng
€102 Ae yisz JusA3 :sajeq
P17 UsaJn) awiT JO Jeyaq uo syl [eluauuo) iasiuebio
Z00VHAVM Juswssassy ysiy buiddiiy pue buiddils — €102 |eAllsad aiy am
£102 [eAlsad aly 9 O} JuBA9|al LOOVHIVM JUBWISSSSSY XSIH
2102 aunp auiAg wil Aq usdepapun LOOYHIVM JUSWSSEsSY Xsiy
T LU Y 1 Y | P TP sassennnnns cesurmnen PEPT TP PITTIIIIE P O._-._H_.Nr_m_m S10SSasSSY

ERIENIE)
81Is uo asiApe 01 obeubis a|qelns Buippe pusuliloday
'sebpay Bujwwiny

pue ‘peos By} Jo SHUEq ay} 3oeq Bumno puswiwodssy
‘aoe|d ul Apeale

2 ‘peO. Ul puaq pue

sa[oIyaA Buipaads

Page 97



‘ade] aduis pJezey 10 aUM Yum paxlew

0} sdeys abejs pue sdwe. abejs ‘sebess jo sebp3

"}Jo pade] Jo payiew

BaJe ay) Jo dn pales|o pue ‘papodal aq o} sabejds ||y
“}IOM JO WL)SAs 9Jes € ulejuiew pue ss|nl Alajes

aYIsS Japun alelado Je)s JIsyl ey} aINsue 0} SI0J0BIU0D
‘Auelsul

yum 1jeep aq o} panods sprezey duy Aue ‘siebeuew
eale pue abejs ‘aus Aq Ajieinbal psiojiuow o)s

“Jiom Jo

sooe|d pue sAemyyed oignd yead je Bunybi| uepyng

sjane| Bunyby mo

‘o|qeqosdw|

‘(sdeo 20}

[091S) Bale }JOom puk ‘(Jom ‘pnui) sSUONIPUOD Jsyleem
8y} 1unoooe ojul Buye; ‘ulom 8q 0} Jeam)oo} 9|gelns
"payly Jo pawybiyby aq o} sejoy abie| Auy

‘eaJe Je|} e uo peoeld aq 0} eaJe uojonpoud ay |
'swiajqoid umouy| jo pajeuq

2q 0] Jels ||¥ "PaJaA09d 10 paj|l} 89 O} Sejoy papssu
alayp 'sdip pue sajoy Jo} padoayo aq 0} punodwod
uononpoud 8y} JO INO pue spIsul eale sjelpaww|

‘?|qeqolid

aosgyv

sbeweq
Joley

20epNs
punoif usaaun

ol

‘g|qeqoldwj

“Jayyeam Jam buunp

Ajjetoadsa ‘paloyuowl aq o} ao1yo ays ol dn deig
‘goussalid 118y} 0} suelysapad

Uale o1 sinojoo Ayjqisia ybiy 1o ade; piezey

yum a|qisia spew aq o} sadoi Anb asnbrew pue
papped Ajqeuns aq o} sbad jual do] b6ig / @anbiep

3|qissod

aosgyv

Jolepy

'sainjoniis
Aelodws |

ol

966 uone|nbay (sreubis pue subis
AoJes) Ajojes pue yiesH ayl yum BuiAidwod subis ein
spiezey olioads Aue jo aleme apew dlgnd pue yels
‘seale 2||qnd wouly
Reme pauoiisod Jo punoib ayy o} ul Bnp aq Aew sajqe)
"S3|0IY8A 10
suosiad Jo yoeal Jo 1no pue suolied Jo speay ] JaAo
wBiey jusions 1e A|2Indss uUmoyy, 8q 0} a.e ss|ged
o1gqnd ay}

Page 98



1E Y40 oYL, seuljapinb oy} o} Bupjiom Ajuo malo
waledwoo Ag usyeuapun aq |im ybley 18 xiom |y 2 ‘s1oelqo Bulieq 2
‘saAljeuls)je ayebisoaul wbiey wouy sjeq4 |
‘sjqissod Janaleym 1ybiay 1e Bupjiom ploay | 3 jereq
o|qeqo.duj Ay aosgyv ‘loley "JybieH e Bunpom
|odjuo) Aisnag
oye s|onuo) oYM | paldspy ase)
pooyiai sainsespy [041u0) pooyt|ayi sdnoun 1SI0MA )siYy / piezeH
a|qeqoadiu| ajoway a|qissod s|qeqo.d juanbaiy TS|0AJUOD YIIM pooyijaNi]
S11 9y} SIWIUIW 1O 3]eJIPEID O] Ud) e} SaInsespy TSaINSEeay [0AU0)
a|qeqoidwy ajoway ajqissod a|qeqo.d juanbaiy TJOJIUOD JNOYHM pooyIjoxi]
lousiA (3) waio (a) algnd (o) 1oyenuo) (g) aakojdw3 (v) pajoayy dnoin
abeweq Ainfuj oN Jouly Jolepy |eled :AJ113A3S ased }SIOM
"auop aq ||Im wiey jey; pooyldyi| ayi st SiH
‘waey asnes o} buiyiawos 1oy [enuajod ayy ‘plezeH

€102 |BeAlIS®4 21y 9\ O} JUBAS|eY - E00VHAIM JUaWISSIsSY Sty
2102 aunp awAg wi] Aq usyersapun £00VHAVM JUSWISSIsSSY XSIH
€10z Aepl yigg-uigz  umopyeasq
g1L02 Aen wive-isiz  piing
€102 Aely yisg 1uaAg :saleq

P17 U8aJH awi JO Jeyaq uo syuq |eluaunuo) asiuebio

£00VHIIM JUawssassy sty ybiaH 18 BuPlIOM — €102 [BAlSa] a1y 9M

ssssssmssanEn

€102 [eAlSa- 81y M\ O} JUBASI3) Z00VHIV M JUSWSsassy sty

2102 aunp aulkg wil Aq ueyeHapun ZoOVH4VM Juswssessy ysiy

L Oﬂﬂn SessEssaEEEIsIEEEEsesEEsEENSEEEEEEE aenmnns sasmmmman snssmzen cssammas ammnmn anun Oh—.—ﬂﬂcm_w m.—ommwmm<

Page 99



210z aunp awiAg wiy Aq uayeuspun y0OVHAVM JUSWSSISSY MSIH
€10z AeN Yigz-yi9z  umopieaig
glLoe AeN yipe-isie plng

€10z Aep yisz juaAj :sajeq

P17 US4 awiT Jo Jleyaq uo syl [eluauiRuo) esuebio

POOVHAVM Juawssassy jsiy Alddng jeanios|3 Aseiodwia] /191419913 — €102 [BANSS 3.y SM

£10z [eAISa 21y OM O} JUBAS|S E00VH-Y M JUaWssessy siy

210z aunp swiAg wi] Aq uadenapun 00VHIY M JUBWISSesSY sty

L e T Qﬁmo AssESSEEEEITEEEESEEENEEEEE assmssmmmn ssenammunn PEXLLLELEL nesummannmw seswnmamnn e m‘—:ﬁm:m_m wu—omwomm<
"JUSWISSasse
ysu oyoads qol UMo 1oy} HWQNS O} SIOJOBIAU0D I “E
«<002

suonenfoy M3dd, Ul 0} 9OUBPIOOOE Ul PUE XSE)} Ul
Bunjepepun 00U 8y} AQ paulelulew pue papirold

aq |m suonenbas anodge auyy Aq paiinbal 3dd Auy g1
500z suonenbey syybieH
1e MIOM 9YL, seulepinb ay} 0} bunpom Ajuo malo

weledwos Aq usxenspun aq [Im yblay 1e 3Hom Iy L1
9oUBApE Ul WED | UOoIdNpoid

01 palou aq 0} Buibbu [euse Buninbai suom Iy 0L

1ybray

1e Bupjiom usym umop pue dn pajunod aq 0} sjoo L

aJe ylom e aoeld ul Bunybi syenbepy

‘uosJad Jualadwos Ag paloaie aq o0} swioyeld sse0oy

‘uosiad eiadwos Ag peoale Buipjoyess

‘a|qissod alaym ‘wonoq pue doj psinoses sisppeT

‘uonIpuod poob ui sIels

‘seale obels 0} panl} 89 0} s|iel pueH

.G00g suone|nbey siybleH

o<W ON O

Page 100



90UEPI0DD. Ul pue ‘esn 10} ayes pue asodind ioj 11} aJe

salddns [eouyosie |[e yeys Buyels areoyiusd JaropueH *

‘papuoq Ypues aq 0} sioyelausb pue sebels |y
‘21eolIUa0 1891 | Vd uaund

B UIIM 9Jes palyiao ad 0} SI0)qIUXe IO SIspel} ‘sialaled
‘yels ‘malo Aq pasn seolAap oU09|e ajqenod Auy

‘o pauonited 1o pasusy siojeloush

‘yeys weledwod 0} pajoulsail siojeleusb o) sseooy
"8]1e01JI8D 1891 B yum paljddns

pue Auedwoo s|geindas Ag peijddns siojessusn
‘swisisAs [eol1098

uo syJom uosiad Jusiadwod pue pauiel} e Ajuo ainsug
" abeig up

pamojly syuLg oN, Buipnjoul ‘ebeubis res|) “ebeubls
JueA8jal Jayjo yym Buofe paisod saoljou 3ooys 011083
‘paxew 39 plepuels aq o} pesn juswdinbe ||y
(suoneinbey 33|

uop3 ;R: suolje|jelsu| [eo1108|3 Jo} sjuswaiinbay
—800¢ :129.5d"® 606/ Sd dU1 YIM 80UEPIODIE

u| paisa} pue pajelsul ‘paubisep aJe selddns |y

yreap o
uINg “{20ys |BO1108|9 JO Ysiy

‘ueloL}oa|e usledwos pue paiyienb e 3
o|qeqoidw| | Aq ino peules Alddns [eaosje Ateiodwa) jo uone|elsul ‘| Ay angav [ere4 uone|elsu| [ealoe|g
JoJluon Aisnag
laye s|ou0) oYUM | pajoapy asen
pooyijayi saINsSeay |043u0) pooyiai sdnouy 1SI0M ysiy / plezeH

"9)Is uo aq

W (s198) sioreseuab Auew moy 1o Auedwoo Aiddns Jemod auy) aq f[im oym umou jou s}l Buium jo awi ayj je ‘si0)esausb Aq palemod aq [Im [eAse) 8y

a|qeqoadw| ajoway ajqissod a|qeqo.d juanbaig IS[0UOD YNm pooyi|aii]

“IS1d 3y} SSIWIUIW 1o 3]edipels O] udjje] sainses|y 'SaInSEay [01JU0D)

ajqeqoaduw) ajoway a|qissod a|qeqo.id juanbaiy TJO1JUOD JNOyIM pooyI3xI]
JousiA (3) wol (a) a11qnd () 1010E1U0Y (8) safojdwz (v) Pa)dayy dnoiH
abeweq Ainfuj oN Jouli Jolepy lereq AJIISA3S 9Sed 1SIOM

auop aq ||Im wuey jeyl pooyl|syl] ays si SIiH

-wJey asned o) Buiyiswos o} enuajod ayy

‘piezeq

£10Z [eAnSad 81y 9M O} JUBAS[RY - FOOVHAVM JUSISSISSY MsiY

Page 101



e pasn juawdinba |[e uo N0 palIED 8q 0} 308YD [BeNSIA 2 3 ‘Jofey ‘Buyows |eou1ose ‘Ian
a|geqoidw| "paloyuow ag o} dn pjIng Jayl| Jo sjeAsT | a|qissod angv ‘lereq — uonyubi / 8114 Jo $82IN0S "}
|onuo) [SUETETS
Jaye sjonuo) oYUM | pajosyy ase)

pooyiaji S2INSE3y [01U0) poouyiayi sdnouy 1SI0MA )SIY / plezeH
a|qeqoiduwy ajoway a|qissod a|geqo.id juanbau4 IS[OIJUOD YHM POOYI[aNT]
“{SH 9y} asIwiulw 1o a}edIpela 0} Ua)ye} SAINSea ISaInseay [0jU0)
a|qeqo.dw 2jo0way a|qissod a|qeqoid juanbaugy TJOJIUOD INOYJIM pooyi[ai|
loysiA (3) walo (a) alqnd () 1030enU0D (9) aakojdw3z (v) :pajodjjy dnoi5
abeweq Ainluj oN Joulp Jolepy |eteq "AJ119ASS SED JSIOM
‘auop aq |Im wiey eyl pooyidyil 8y s! JSiH

‘wJiey asneo o} buiyjawos 10§ jenuajod ayy

‘plezeq
€102 [BAlIS3 21y 9 O} JUBAS|SY - SOOVHIVM JusWwssassy ysiy
Zlog aunp awiAg wiy Aq uaxeuapun GOVHAIM JUdWSSassy Hysiy
€10z Aep yiGz  JuLAg :seleq
*P1] UdaIK) awiT JO jleyaq uo syl [epusauiuo) tiasiueblio

S00VHIIM Juswssassy HysIY adld — €10 [eallsa aly apA

€102 [eAlSO- 81y M O} JUBAS|S] #00VHIYM JUBWISSOSSY XSiY

210z sunp aulkg wiy AQ uexeHapUN $OOYHLY M JUSWSSESSY Ysiy
I KN R N LD L L L PN SRR P L A ey ssiNusen Oh—.—ﬂﬂcmmw w‘—ommoww<

"|0JJUOD JUBAS 3Y] YlIM

u Boj pue wuoul 3snw Asyy Aiddns sy Buisn juswdinba
Aue yum Addeyun si uelouose syl J ‘uiod uonngusip
pue uone|elsul Alaas yim usye) eq 0} uonoadsul [ensip
"(suone|nbay

Buuim 33| uowip3 /2 1) suoie|felsu| [eoL3os|3

Joj sjuswalinbay — 8002 1/9/.S48 6062 SE Yim

T

Page 102



"o|qeqoidw]

a|qeqoidu|

"sjeyue|q pue sisysinbunxe

JO uonIsod pue UOIIPUOD UO Bpewl syoayd Jejnbay
‘palonJjsqoun pue

paubis AlJes|o aq 0) sjexuE|q pue siaysinbunxa aJi4
"sieyuelq a1y / sieysinbunxe

JO JUNOWE pue uoisod 10} POSSISSE SNUIA

“Bunyby Aousbiswae anuaa |le jo s)oayo Jenbay
‘pajonJisqoun ale s}ixs allj ||e ainsug

‘SOPIS YIIM S8INJONIIS pue ylom jo seoe(d

ui Bunjows oN, jo Juswaiojus pue abeubls J1es|)
‘papaau uaym dn yoeq

106 0] suesiuebio [BANSS) YIM UOIIBDIUNWIWOD Jes|)
“wuswdinbe Bunybiy a4y 8|qepod Jo asn ul paulell JJels
‘a)Is uo a|gejreae swdinba Bunyby aayy arenbapy
"JuepJlelal swe)} 8q 0} $8INJONIIS ||y

"juepJlelal swelj 8q 0} J029p ||V

"asn pue uonisod Jley} uo pajaiuqg aq 0} Jels

Buusies ‘syaxue|q aJly pue siaysinbuixa ayeudoidde
Aejdsip Alres)o pue Aleo o} sjjels Buueied pooy |y
"ainpaooid auy pue sjuiod

a1} JO UOIBD0] BY} JO 91eme spew aq o} [suuosiad ||y
"sall} 10}

asn 0] uaye} Buleq Jan| Juansid o} AlNdsg / spiemals
‘[eualew a|gqusnquwiod woly dn jes Bulsq

saJy [lews Buipods ui uebiyip aq 01 A1UN08S / SpJemals
"9oUBIB3[O 18]1| Ul BAI10 8q 0} Swea) 18l

‘leAllsa} ay}

K9

el

¢t
L
ol

9|q1ssod

d|qissod

aogdyv

aogyv

“Jole

“1ole|y
‘IoUul

abeweqg
‘Jouln

‘siayuelq
/ sdaysinbuiixa a4iy oN
"ally Jo Alenooasiq g

‘U] Ajle1enbape sainoy

"Pa320|q siix3 all4
- adeose Jo sues|\ 2

Page 103



pooyiayi] | sainsesy [0uUo) _ pooyiayi [ sdnoyg | isiom | ysiy / piezey

"e1s uononpoid pue siaydelbojoyd ‘spiemsls ‘AjINoas ‘sjuelsisse
pue siabeuepy sbelg ‘(Aejd 0} Bunrem)s,ng ‘sueloiuyoe] — eale asiou ybiy pareubisap & ul Buplom asoy) 0] JUBAS|a4 AJUO S| JUSWISSSSSE YSII SIY |

alqeqoiduy ajoway a|qissod ajqeqoid juanbaig IS[0IJUOD YHM pooyiayi]

)4S1 8y} asiwiuiw 1o ajedipeid 0} udje} sainsespy IS9INSEa| |01JU0D)

ajqeqoaduw) ajoway a|qissod a|qeqo.d juanbaiy IJO1U0D INOYFM pooyi|aji]
lousiA (3) w9 (a) aliqnd (9) 1oyoenuo) (g) aafojdw3z (v) pajosyy dnoiH
abeweq Ainfu] oN Joulpy Jolep |ereq TAJ119ASS 9Sed 1SIOM

SuUop aq ||Im wuey jey} pooyl|al| ayy sl SiH

“wiey asneo o} buiyjawos 10} jenuajod ayj Ipiezeq

€102 [BAN1SO 91y 3 O} JUBASI3Y - 900VHIVM JUawWssassy ysiy
Z10Z sunp awiAg wi) Aq udyenspun goovH4VM JudWSsassy ysiy
€10z AeN Y182-Y192  umopeaig
€10z Aey wive-1sie  piing
€10z Aepy yisz  JuaA3l isejeq

P11 U93JK) SWIT JO jjeyaq uo syl [elusunuo) uasjueblQ

900VHAVM Judwissassy )siY 3SION — €10¢ [eAllS34 aly 9M
€10¢ [eAlse] aly M O} JUBARIS] GO0VHIIM WBWSSISSY HSiY

Z10g aunp auiAg wil Ag usxeHapuN GOOVHAIM JUSWSSaSSY Ysiy

MEsssssdsEssssRREE R s R OH.“D ............ R L L e e e T asw Uh_‘-ﬂmcm_m w‘—owwwmw<
3
8000VHJTIM JUSWSSISSE %S HHSOO O} Jajed 'L "9]qIssod aosay Jofepy siopulifo seb d1 °g
"paxoayo ‘lereq "SUONED0| 1IX8 8.1 JO 8/emeun
AenBay pue s|qisia A|iny oq 0} subis Ixa ally Iy '2 3 ‘1ofepy $199)UN|OA / JB)S / SIONSIA ‘&
‘a|qeqoidw| "aAlLIEe ABU) USUM S]IX8 811} 8y} JO UOEOO| BY} "a|qIssod ansgyv
INoge pajalqg aq 0] SIONSIA PUB SIS8UN(OA ‘JelIs (I |

Page 104




Z10z aunp auwAg wij Ag usyeuapun 9go0VH-VY M JusWssassy sty

B e T UH.NQ A EREEEEESGESEEIEEEEEEAESEEEEEEEEEESEENEIEIIEIAENSESENANREEASESEUIENIEEEESERERS whsﬁmcm_m mv—owmwmm<

-abreyo Jo aa1) payddns ‘esn
olgnd 1o} uonewLIoul Wolj a|ge|ieAe uonoelod Jeg gl
‘@ouelue ud
1e 8|ge|leAe spew uoiosloid Jes e|qesodsip ‘uonosiold
Jea Buuesm si eale 1d ay) o} {sysenb ‘sieydesboloyd)
$59908 UaAID auoAue ainsus 0} MaId Id "L |
‘way} Buleam ase pue uolosjoid
1ea aney (wiopad o} Bunrem) siewiopad pue
ma1o abeys Bupjiom Jje ey} ainsus o) siebeuew abels 0L
‘Ayanoe
pueq 0} UOIJe[el Ul S|9A3| OIpNE [enuasse 0} jdey
eq 01 (1ano abueyo) spueq usamiaq disnw abels uQ 6
"0ISNW 9Al| UBY}
sjoAs| Jamo| Ajqesapisuoo je pake|d aq pjnoys (disnw
19|l ‘s,~) S1OB 8AI| Usamlaq disnw 9|qissod a1y '8
"(s.vd
‘sebe)g) oisnw paiydwe Aq peressusb sjans| asiou
Aq pe1oaye [suuosiad Junoooe ojul 8ye)} o) ubisep ays ‘L
‘syealq JusIowns aney
1o pejelol ale seale asiou Buppom |guuosiad ainsug "9
"eaJe asiou ybiy payeubisep
e sl eale 1d pue abe;s rey) Buisiape ebeubis Jes|y g
"S|oA8| 18S POBOXS O} JBASU S|OAS| 9SION v

Page 105

‘1ebeuew abe)s woly 1o ‘eale }Id
‘ease ud / obe)s punose o|qe|ieAe Ajgaiy uoiosiold segq g ‘eale abeig xoeq
*(sBnid Jee ‘ssuoyd pesy) 3dd Jeam o} ‘eale abelg
sease osiou ybiy pareubisep ul Bupyom jpuuosiad Iy g “JOUIN
ajgeqo.duwj ‘paJojiuow A|9soo aqg 0} S|9A8| 8SION 1 Al ‘olepy 3009V -o1snw payidwe — asioN
jouod JSTFELETS

laye S[0J1U0) oYM | P3OV ase)




“InoyBnoIy} paloliuoW POOW pue AJISUSp pMoID
"uonenoBAS 9JEl|I0B) O} YEIS JUSIDIYNS

'SUO[1oN.1Sqo Jo a1y }day pue paubis Ajes|d six3
‘Aressaoau aq UOIBNJBAS PINOYS S}USWSoUNOUUR

Joj 9oe(d Ul WalsAs uoiesIUNWWOoD 1es|)

"A}aJES pMOIO SSNISIp 0] SpJemals / Alinoas pue
s1osiuebio usns yum aoe(d axe; o1 sbunesw Jejnbey
‘SUE]S JUaAS

alojaq aoe|d ayel 0} Buyauq premals pue Alnoss

JuswsAow
pmoio ssew ‘l1ayleam pegqg

"SJUI0d Youid

‘Buiysnin

‘eoejd ul Ind aq 0} 3 lofepy
a|qeqoidw] | spiemals pue Alunoss alis paousliadxe pue jusjedwo) a|qeqoid angav ‘lereq Ayajes pmoin
j051u09 Aianag
laye s|oJjuo) Inoyum | pajoayy ase)
pooyiaxi sainsea |oJu0) pooyiayi sdnouyn 1SIoMm sy / piezeH
a|qeqoiduw) ajoway a|qissod a|qeqoud uanbaiy IS|OjU0D YHM pooyijanr
iSI4 3y} asiwiujw 1o 3)edIpela 0} uad)e} SaINSeap TSeINSEeap) [01JU0)
ajqeqoaduw sjoway a|qissod a|qeqo.d wanbaigy T|013UGS INOYM POOYIdNI]
JousiA (3) wao (a) alqnd () toyoenuo) (g) aakodwz (v) :pajoayy dnoiH
abeweq Ainfu] oN Joulp Jolepy |ereq "AJ1I9ASS 9SED ISIOM
"aUop aq [|IM wuey jey} pooyiai| dy; S! sty
“wJiey asnea o} buiyawos 10} jenuajod ayy piezeH

£102 [eAnSa4 a1y 9 O} JUBAS[aY - L00VHATVM JudWISsassy ysiy
210z Ae auiAg wiy Aq uaenapun L00VHAVM JUSWSSasSsY sy
€10z Aey y18z-y19z  umopyeaig
€10z Ael§ Uiyz-isiz  ping
€10z Aep yigz  uang :sajeq

P17 USa4n aWiT JO Jeyaq uo syl [elusuiuos iasiuehlo

L00VHIVM luswssassy jysiy A1ajeg pmolD — €102 [eANSa a1y 9M

€10¢ [eAllsad aly S 0] JUBAS[BI G00VHIV M JUSLISSISSY XSIH

Page 106



ajqeqoaduwi) ajoway a|qissod a|qeqo.d juanbaiy TS[OUOD YHM pooyidyi

S1d 9y} SSIWIUlW 10 3)edIpeld 0] udye] SaInsesp TSaInseap) |[01JUo)

a|qeqo.duwy 2j0Wway a|qissod a|qeqo.d juanbaiy TJOJ3U0D INOYIM PooyI[N |
JousiA (3) walo (Q) a1qnd (9) 1030e1U0)D (8) aakojdwz (v) ‘P)osyy dnoin
abewe( Ainfuj oN JOoUuIN Jolep 1ered :AJ119A3S 3SED 1SIOM

*auop aq [|Im uney jeyy pooyl|syl] ay} si sty

‘wey asnes o0} Buiylawos Joy [enualod ayy

:piezey
€102 [BAIIS?4 31y M O} JUBA3|3Y - 800VHIVM JUdWssassy ysiy
2102 aunp awiAg wiy Aq usyenapun goovHIVM JUSWSSasSY ysiy
€102 Aely yigz-yigz  umopyealg
¢lLog Aely Uwe-isite piing
€10C AeN YiGg JueAg :sajeq

P11 U2aJx) awiT JO jjeyaq uo syl [eluaunuo) uasiueblo

800VHIVM Judwssassy )sid HHSOD — €10¢ |eAllsa4 31y 9M

semsesaee sessrsssssciees gipey

€102 [eAllSO 83y O\ O} JUBASIRI Z00YH Y M WSWSSOsSSY YsiY
210z Aepy swiAg wi Aq uexepspun Z00VHAYM USWSSassy Msiy

srssenmmamnnn srmenmmEman srsssnsmEman sasasssmmun asannmzman asenssammmmEn nenenmnn mh—.-u.mcm_m mhowmmmm<

‘selued Jueasal

[[& 01 P8EedIuUNLLILIOD 8 0} SUOIIPUOD JSYleaMm SLUBIIXS
UO SMauU pue paloluow aq O} S}Sesa.o) Jayleap

‘Jeso 1dey pue j| Ajerenbspe

ale yoliym sedeoss ali JusIoIPNs ARy SeNUBA
‘abe)syoeq /siojeiaush

‘B0 seale oAnISUaS 0} SS90 Jolisal 0} pesn Buous
‘AlNo9s pue spiems)s

Buisn reso 1dey aq |m Asyy sjuiod yould, Aue Jo Jusas
sy u| * suod youid, pioae o} se os paubissep aq 01 8IS
-fressadeu Usym Aljus 1ouisal 0} Aljiqy

el

HE

ol

Page 107



"eole 8Indas e u| yieap
ongnd ay} Jo siequiaw wolj Aeme soloqg seb uonisod 2 Jo ssauj ‘Aunfu
‘salnpaooid abesn 1991100 8y} 10 ysu ‘Bujuosiod
ul paulel) usaq aney seb Hd Jo uonepodsuel} pue seb Jo uoisojdxe
il joxsusen Hdl i
"paJoliuowl aq O} Jo| JO S|eAeT 'S
-1obeUBW BUI| 0] pauodal aq o} sjel jo ubis Auy ‘¢
‘Apjadoud Jo pasodsip eq 0} pooy 8lSepy ‘€ "‘oseas|(]
‘ajqejieae sheme saijioe} Buiysem pueH g s|lo M ‘sisondsoide
"(ISH woly 18(yeeT ¥8OANI) 3 —[eoibojolg 1
alqeqo.dw| oseasIp S,JI9M Inoqe pejaug 8q ol Jels Iy ‘| 8|qissod aogyv [eyed
jonuo) Auanas
Joye S|OJUO) INOYHNM | pajodly ase)
pooyijayi saJnsSeay |oIU0D pooyiaI sdnoun 1SI0M NSy / piezeH

“aseasIp S I8\ JO sisolidsoydaT bunoenuod Jjo Aujiqissod e si 819y}
‘auun s,Jel ALeo 0) umouy aie Jojem JaAlY pue [eueD *(payoeje ainjoid) eale siy} Buisn aq |m sted Jeys A1 Aluby st 3| ) Ul ysigana Jo swal Auew sey
puod 8y *paleoo| aq [|im anol ssedoe Aousbisws pue uoyonpold ay} aiaym Ajqissod ‘als [eAlse} 8y} 0} Ixau pajenys si seal} Aq papunouns puod |[ews ¢

Page 108




sousiA (3) weno (@) 2uand (0) loroenuog (g)
ebfeweqg AinfujonN Joully Jolep |eyed

Ipajoaljy dnoin
AJl19ASS 25BD IS0\
*auop 3q [[Im wuey 1eyy pooyl|axl] aya st sy
‘wJey asned o} Buiyiawios 1o} [enuajod ayy pIezeq

eakojdwz (v)

Z10Z |eAlsa4 aly 3 Ol JUBASI3Y - 600V H4IM JUdWISSIssY Hsiy
2102 aunp awAg wil Aq usyenapun 600VHIIM JUSWSSISSY YsiY
€102 Ael Y162 - Y1z umopyjeaigd
€10z Aey yisz - pugz  piing
€10g Aely yisg 1UaA7 isajeq

P17 USaJr) awi JO Jeyaq uo sylQ jeluaunuoy :uasiueblo

600VHATM JUswISSassy sy aiejlop Pue Ajajeg Maid — 0102 [eAlSad 3y 9Mm

U areq

£10g [eANSe- 91y O\ O} JueAs|Rl 800YH VM JUSWISSassY Ysiy
Z1oz Aepy auiAg wiy Aq uexepapun goOVHAYM lUSWSSassY Ysid

M EEEEGeEEEEEEEGSAESEESSEENSESEANEYESEEGSEUAGEEERERUESEEANEANeEEmERAREFEsERuEnS Ohﬂ-”—.ﬂcm_w m~°ww0mm<

"suone|nbal HHSOD Jed sy "seouelisqns

snopJezey [[e uo s}eays ejeq Alejes [euejew uelqo
a|qejieae si Juswdinba

aAoa)oId 19814100 By} pue sjuiod abeiols 8ouelsqns
snopJezey |[e Jo aJeme aJe wea ] Juswabeuep

JUSAT R Jels [eAllsa) ‘spiema)s ‘Alinoas ainsul
G/200¢ suole|nbay

yleaH O} snoplezeH saouUBlsSqns JO [0JJU0D dYl YIM
50UBpI099. Ul JUBWISSISSY YsiH HHSOD arenbsepe ue
apinoid siepiroid 1o]10} o1 S[edIweyd Buisn s1010BHU0D
91e01}IUS0 9Jeg SEr) JuUalInd

B YIm sjes palyued aq o} seb Hd Buisn uswdinbe |1y
‘polsad Inoy g| e o} palinbai si

UOIuM Jeyl peaoxe Jou saop (siaialeo) Hd jo abeloig

Page 109



T e aleq

R T T

EErsmasssasssssasmsennsssnERanEnE mh—dﬁmcm_w mhowwmmm<

a|geqoiduy|

‘seale 1sal pue ‘s}a)i0} ‘sjuiod Jejem

JO UOKEBDO| JO aleme aie |guuoslad ainsu3]
‘Tenlsa4 aly ap

jo siazjuebio sy} Aq pepiroid saiyjioed piy
1s114 8y} Jo aseme ale [suuoslad |je ainsu3]
s8ilAoe

pliNg |eAllse) woly Aeme seAjaswIaYy] Ysalpal
pue }sal 0} Je]ls IO} 8YIS U0 BaJe 9pIA0Ig
‘s1owlopead pue

Jels ||e 0} o|ge|leA.e apew S| Jajem Juaioiyng
paJinbai syse} 1no

Aled 0} Jels Jo slaquinu ajenbape sinsug
"'Se|npayos Jels

Ul Syeelq [eaw pue }sal djenbspe ainsug
"pPaJ0jUOW 8q 0} YIOM JO SWa)sAs

8JEeS pue SJusLWle}S poylswl JoJoBIUOD
‘a|qeordde atoym (3dd) Juswdinbe Ayajes
ays ojeudoidde Jeam 0] SI0JOBIUOD / MBID
"a|qeonoeld aisym

pade} piezey Jo paous} 8q 0} spiezey 8)Ig
‘aum e

Je seaJe YIOM JO}UOLL 0} SI0)OBIIUO0D / MBID
"JeBeuew ays Aq pajoslp eq

0] pue 3910 8)IsS 0} Hodal 0} SIOJOBAUOD ||y
‘Huwi| peads ydw g ayi 0] aiaype 0} SISALIP [IY

!

11

01

—

a|qissod

aVv

lolep

ssals 10
uonsneyxs ‘uoleipAysp Jo ysu
— M®I0 ‘[Jels [BA1IS8) JO aIBjloM

‘Alefes 10101U07) / MBI

|oJjuos toye
pooyjayI

sainsesyy [01jU0)

s|oqjuo)d
noypm
pooyijoxi

paloayy
sdnouy

Anienag
ase) I1SIoM

YSIH / pJezey

a|qeqoduyj

a|qeqoidwy

aloway qIssod o|qeqold
"SM 9y} SSIWIUIW IO 3}eJIpeId 0} Us)e] Sainsesy

aloway a|qissod 2|qeqoid

wanbaig

wanbaig

*S|041U03 Yum pooyiax]
isalnseay| joljuo)
T[o13UGS INOYNM POOYI[aN T

Page 110



paloadsul aq 0} sainjonJis Aresodwa} pue bupusy ||y
‘Yum paladule] jusie sainioniis

ey} ainsus 0] aysuo pauonisod aq pjnoys Andss
*S10}0B1JU0D YIM uoljounfuod

ul palddns aq o} sajeoyiped Buueaq peo| Jueas|ey
"8]eol)IuaD) I8N0 pueH

/ 19ays yo ublg |einonig e ubis o1 Bulm si01oe1U0D
'suosiad Jusjadwod Ag pajoale aq 0} 8Je sainjonils ||y
ABajul resnjonays pue Buipeo] Buipiebs. suonenbal
US1IND 0} WIOUOD pjnom yoiym ‘sainjonuis Aresodway

Ainfug jo ysu — Buiousy
abeweq | /sesanbrep seinonis

a|qeqoiduy] 109Je pue apiaoid 0} $10}0eHUOD d|geindal asn 9|qi1ssod Jaongyv| ‘olfen Aresodws) jo asde|j09
sjouo) Aanag
|oJjuo)) 1aye mnoyum pajoayy asen
pooyiayi sainseayy [0J}u0) pooyia)i sdnoun }SIopA )SIH / plezeH
a|geqoiduwl] ojoway 3|qIssod 3d|qeqold uanbaiy TS|0J1U00 YlIM pooyla)i]
IS 9y} asiwiulw 10 djedlpeld 0} Ud)e} SaInses|y TSaINSeay [01jU0)
a|qeqoisdw] aowdy 3|qISsOd d|qeqold uanbaig JJOJJUOD oYM pooyI|a)I|

lousiA (3) wend (a) onand (9)

Joy0e4U0) ()

eakodw3 (v)

abeweqg AunlujoN Jouly Jofep |ereq
*auUop 3q [|IM wley jey} pooyl|dyl] ayy st sty
‘wuey asnes o} buiyjawos 1o} fenpuajod ayy ‘piezeH

£102 [eAnSa4 81y 9M O} JUBAS|aY - 01L00VHIATM JUSWISSassY Ysiy

210z aunp auiAg wil Aq uayeuapun gLOOVHIIM JUSWISSISSY XSIY

€102 Aey Y162 - YiLZz umopyeaiq
€102 Ae\ yisz - pugz  piing
€102 Ael yisz JuaAg isejeq

P17 USa4Y) Wi JO Jeyaq uo SHLQ [elusuiuos iasiueblio

0100V HAIM JUBWISSASSY YSiY $ain1onnsg >._G._OQEO.._- — €10¢ |[eAllsa4 aly SM\

€10¢ leAllse aly @M O} JUeAs|dl 600VHIIM JUSWSSassy Xsiy

Z10z aunp swiAg wiy Aq usxepapun 00VHAIM JUSWSSaSSY Ysiy

Page 111



a|qeqoidw| | sJauleluod pajesas Ul palols aq O} Jnis poo} |y 1 "9]qISS0d 3a09Vv| ‘Jofeyy [103su — ynispooy paiols Ajpeg
s|oquo)
|jonuos Jsye moyum paayy | Aueass
pooyiayi sainsesyy [013U0) pooyiayIy sdnoir [asen jsiom sy / piezeH
a|qgeqoidw] olowey |qissod a|qeqold uanbail S[0JJU0D UM pooylayi]

JSI1 9y} SSIWIUIW 10 31B2IPEID O] Ud)e)} SAINSealy TSaINSeay [0JU0D)
s|qeqoadw| oj0wey a|qissod dqeqoid

Jousia (3) wend (@) onand (9)

abeweqg Ainlujopn

Joyoenuo) (g)
Jouliy Jolepy lered

juanbaug

TJOJ7UGO JNOUIIM POOYISNTT

aakojdwz (v) 'pajoay dnoiH

:Al119A3S 3seD 1SIOM

"aUop 3q [[IM WY ey} POOYIaX1] SY S SISt
“wiey asned o} Buiyiawos 1o} jenuajod ayy ‘piezeq

€102 [eAllsa4 3ly 9\ 0} JUBAJ|Y - L0V HIIM JUSLUSSISSY HSIH

Z10z aunp awiAg wi) Aq usyeuspun ZL.00VHAIM JUSWSSIsSY ysiy

€102 AepN W62 - Uil  umop)eaig
€102 Aepl wisg - pugz  pIing

€102 Aely yige  Juan3 :sajeq

P17 U9aJr) awi JO jjeyaq uo syl [eluaunuo) iasiueblQ

Z100VH4IM Juswissassy ysiy shun Buiaje) — €102 [eARSad aly 9M

€102 [eAllse4 aly 8 0] JUeAd[@J 0100VHAIM JUSWSSOSSY MSIH

Z10g aunp swiAg wil Aq useHapun 0L00VHAIM JUSWISSISSY S

................................ wﬂmo L L e R wh—.—ﬂmcmmw w‘—owmmmm<

‘Aressadau

JI SUOIYIPUOD Jayleam aWalIXa JO S}0aye ay) 1oBIdajunod
0] SJ0JOBJIUOD B|geusd 0} Ajlep paxoayd spodal Jayieapy
“181] %09y Ajrep e Buisn paxosyo pue

Page 112



a|qeqoiduw)

ajgeqoldu)

‘oqnd jelsuab au} Aq pasn

2Q 0] 10U “}9[10] UMO 118y} SARY 0} Slalsje)
‘Aiddns 1s1eM

Buluunl umo I8y} 0} SS8IJE BARY 0] Sislale)

"dDOVH pue [0oojoid
aualbAy pooy ieyl yum Aldwod 0} siale1eo ||y

‘sJellteq areudoidde yum oignd

WoJ} papalys oq 0} s,Dgg pue saoepns j0H
"AyuoiA ayy vl

palo]s jeuslewl a|qewwelj ou pue ‘sainjonils
wouy Aeme pajenyis aq 0} swnip Bupjood Hgag
‘Jjuepielal

swe|} 0} seanblew owsp pue Buleies ||y
"POPEO|ISA0 Jou aJe saliddns [eou1o9|3

“eaJe Buo0o Jo apIsINo palo}s aq 0} SojHoq
seb 4o ‘paxosyo aq 0} dom adid seb 497 |1y
‘pPe1se] 1Vd g o} luawdinbs [eoujosie ||y
"slayue|q

pue sieysinbuiixe aiiy aaey o) Bunaieo ||y

"alis uo }doy eq 0} sa1doo

‘dDOVYH PUB JUBLISSOSSE XSl S,Ja181ed Yosy)
‘s1senbal abelols pooy

yum paldwod oAey sialaled ainsus o} Buluens
Aepinjeg uo pax)oayo aq o} syun Buusied
‘saull}

[Ie e ues|o 1day aq 0} S8oeUNS puk SI00|H
‘syun pajelablyal

10 SIBUIBlUCD pajeas Ul paioys Buleq

INOYUM 100[} 8} UO Palols 8q 0} 4nISpooj ON

"syun pajelabujal 1o

a|qissod

8|qIssod

od

ENCRORSA

Joully ‘aole

~1ebueq
‘lolepy

abeweq

UOIBUIWEIUOYD) SSOID

‘suing
"all4

"sjoasul
‘SJU8POJ WIS UOIIUILIBIUOD

Page 113



"splemals ayeb
Aq yuwi| peads 0} paps[e 8q O} SISAUP IV 2
‘padiojus pue ‘Ainfu)
s|qeqosdw| | paubis Aeajo aq o) ywi peeds ydwg sus L 9|qIssod oV fereq 10 UOIS|[|09 JO YSiY —ied Je)
|[onuo) S$]0JjJU0D) INOYNIM| P3JOdY A1119A0S
uaye pooyl|ayi sainsesy |04ju0) pooyiayi sdnolir) |ase) ISIOM )slY / piezeH

o

siqeqo.sdw] ajowdy 9jqissod 3lqeqoid uanbaig 1S]|043U0D Ylim pooyliajii

"SI Y} asIwiuiw 1o 3jedipeld 0] ud)e} SaInsesly IS2INSE3py [0J]U0)

s|qeqoidw| ajowdy |qissod dlqeqold usanbalg 1|oJU0D oYM pooyi|a)iT]

lousip (3) weno (@) auand (o) Joroenuo) (g) aako|dw3 (v) :pajoayly dnoin

sbeweqg AinfujoN Jouliy Jolepy |eyed TAJ119A3S 9Sed }SIoOM

"auop aq [|Im wJey yeys pooyl|axi| ayy s! sy

‘wJey asned o} Buiyswos 10} fenuaiod ayy :piezeH
€102 [eAlS94 a1y 9 O} JUBAS|9Y - €L00VHIIM JUSWSSAsSY )isiy
2102 aunp auwiAg wiy Aq uayepspun £L00VHIIM JUdWSSasSY ysiy

£10Z Aep Yi6e - Yizg  umopealg

€102 Ael wise - puge  piing
€102 Aely yigz WaA3 :sajeq
P17 uaalix) awi Jo jjeyaq uo SHUIQ [eruaunuod r_mm_:mm..o
£L00VHAIM JUaWsSsassy YsiY Yied Jed — €102 |BASSd aly 3M
€102 [BANS94 81y 8\ O} UBAS|3) ZLOOVYHAIM JUsWISsSassy Xsiy
2102 aunp suiAg wi) Aq usxenapun gL00VHIIM JUSWSSasSY XsiY
sesssanssssassrnTnnanns R 1Y | PR T TR P P T T e TR L T e e s S . 0._=u_.m=m_w SI0SSassy

‘ybiu Jano
Jaurejuoo pajesas e Ul palols 8q ol s|isueIn |Iy v

Page 114



€102 [EAISO- 21y M O} JUBAS2) £ 100VH-TM JUSWSSassY sy

2102 aunp suiAg wil AQ usseHapun €LO0VHATM JUSWSSassyY s

W AEAS A NBEBGUNAGAEEEEEEEEEEEEERERERETEIREEARIIEARIEEAAUsSEEBEEBERN SRR RRRT Y OL-.-HNF_m_w w.—owmomw<

a|qeqoiduy]

‘sjuswalinbas sseooe

yum ajdoad djay o1 puey uo spiremals
"Aq puels

uo aq 0} JJeq Jo sbuiddiyo poom ‘meng
‘pasepuly

10U s1 ssalbs pue ss900E aINSUd

0] ‘paloluow aq o} sajeb ueuisapad
‘Al@yIjun Sawo02aq SB|oIYaA

Jo} uonoel; JI Aq puels uo sejeq mels
‘soui e

e paloyuow aq o] yied Jes Jo uolpuon)

“yred o1 a1e Aay} ateym xied Jeo
By} Ul eale 8] 0] pajoalip 89 O} SI9AUP ||V

a|qissod

oV

Jolep
abeweq

"SUOI}IpUOD
1oojy Appnw Aq pasapuly
ssalfe pue ss820k uellsopad
‘uonoel} peq
‘Buipppis sied — Jayjeam 1o

Page 115



Appendix 13- Security Plan and deployment

CROWD MANAGEMENT PLAN - SECURITY PLAN
We Are Festival 2013

Introduction

An Open Air event in its first year, taking place at Damyns Airfield on Sunday 26th May
2013. A 50/50 female, male split, the event will be open from 1100 - 0230am.

A large number of artists performing across a Main stage,several large indoor marquees
and numerous smaller marquees. A fairground, VIP area and a marketplace. A traffic
Management plan will incorporate car parking and shuttle buses.

Attendees: Approx 14,999 persons.

TIMES: -

Doors open: - 1100

Music starts: - 1100

Alcohol sales: - 1100 - 0200

Music stops : - 11pm (outdoor stage) - 0230 (2-3 Large marquees)
Concessions close: - 0200

Gates close: - 2300

Facilities
Stages, Front of house, Marquees, Toilets and smaller stages. Buses and carparking
facilities.

Capacity
See EMP : - 14,999 persons.

Layout
See site map provided by Continental Drifts.

Approach
Entry into the park will be by a main gate. The public will be expected to use public

transport, car and coaches.

Statement of Intent
A focus on safe and effective crowd management will be included in all aspects of
planning for the “We Are” site. Close working relationship between all the partners and
the Emergency services will ensure a pro active approach.

SB Security Solutions Itd shall ensure that all Security staff working on the site shall
have the correct training for their roles and responsibilities. A Manager shall be in
contact with the client through their event and shall be kept updated on any issues that
may arise.

Page 116



Event Overview

Event Schedule
(see event manual)

Public Profile

As this is a 1st year event, crowd profile will be based on previous experience of events
of this nature. 50/50 split and likely age range 18 - 35 yrs.

Public Journey
Arrival

Pre-event communications will encourage the public attending to utilise public
transportation and coach/ ticket packages. There will be a full traffic management and
signage plan which will link to the on-site security. A marketing strategy will be in place
and all event publicity shall inform those attending that there is no access to the event by
foot due to lack of pavements. There will be a prohibited items list and will be published
on arrival to the event and on the website.

Screenin

Search policy will be in place. This will be a full search to include metal detectors.

Access to Venue
Access will be by a Main Gate 1. Security will be in place to monitor these entry points
and a search policy will be in place. Ticketing system will be in place. Gate 2 will be for
Guests and VIP access only.

Management Structure & Communication
In order to maintain the safe and effective management of “We Are” and to ensure
delivery of this plan, a management structure of experienced and qualified staff will
provide key roles within the venue. This structure will be supported by a team of
Stewarding staff reporting to the Security Manager along with other functional area staff
on the venue.

Security / Stewarding Structure
The Security and Stewarding team will be tasked with looking after the integrity of the
clients infrastructure, bars, stage duties and response teams. The team will be made up
of SIA license holders and stewards who hold a relevant NVQ Level 3 supervisor
qualification and contracted paid stewards with a relevant NVQ Level 2 qualification.

The team will be supplying the following services:
° Circulation and directions
° Monitoring entrances.
° Monitoring crowd access and egress
Perimeter security.

o]

Page 117



Stage Security

Other roles within the event arena.
Bar Security

Search Policy

ID checks on the gate

Each steward will have an allocated role in the event of an evacuation. Full details to be
incorporated into later drafts of the evacuation plan.

Security will be deployed in the following roles, determined by the event:

-Stage security - To check backstage access, pit working and integrity of the
performers.

- Bars - To enforce the license and check under-age drinkers.

- Response Teams - To operate within the venue and deter Anti social behaviour

Event Control Room (ECR)
The Event Control Room (ECR) is the central hub for venue operations; the safety and

well-being of all persons on site will be monitored from this area. The ECR will contain all
crowd management, public area and other safety equipment. The ECR will also house
representatives from the Emergency services. The Security Manager will work with other
organisations within the control room to ensure radio communications are operational.
The Security Manager and the Police liaison will want to be on the ground which will
mean communication can still exist throughout the event.

Emergency Liaison Team (ELT)
An Emergency Liaison team will be made up of representatives from the show
Management, Security, health & Safety and emergency services. In the event of a major
incident these teams will be charged with ensuring safe evacuation to refuge areas, and
further tasks.

The Emergency Liaison Team will liaise with Emergency Services in the event of
transfer of authority.

Planning Inputs
Identified Areas of Massing and Specific Crowd Control issues

Access to site
Will be by entry gates, already in place. Tickets will be used to ensure that we do not
exceed license capacity. A back up system of “counters/clickers can be in place in case
of ticket check failure. A barrier system will be in place to control crowds approaching the
pedestrian gate.

Page 118



Circulation

°  Once within venue site, the public can access catering concessions, toilets,
marquees and the open areas. Stewards will be located in areas to direct people
around the site if required to do so.

° Any pinch points or likely congestion areas will be monitored and actioned on
accordingly.

° Security and stewards will be located within the event site to ensure that all areas
are managed safely.

° Egress
Egress will be by the same way as entry. Security and stewards will be deployed leading

up to end time and ensure that crowds dispersing are not congested and it is safely
managed.

Staffing

Management

Training
The contracted staff will be qualified.
In addition all staff will attend a Venue Familiarisation session to cover:
Event information
Venue layout/access/egress/emergency routes
Venue safety systems
Venue facilities
Communication processes
Emergency procedures

Briefings
A briefing will take place with all staff before moving to position. This briefing will cover:

Review of venue Health and Safety
Review of roles and responsibilities
Changes in operation

A Management meeting will take place before,during and at the end of each event and
information will be recorded and fed into the following event to improve the systems in
place.

Deployment
Key staffing positions have been allocated to each role. Each steward and staff member

will be briefed on their specific role and will report to a specific position. Staff will be
directed on their roles and responsibilities and scope. (Refer to Stewarding positions)

Staff Welfare
As per staff briefing

Page 119



Key Stages

Crowd Monitoring
Stewards will be positioned in key locations during ingress and egress to observe
pedestrian flow, identify and report potential issues, and efficiently resolve problems as
directed by the ECR and in coordination with key functional areas.

Evacuation
(See evacuation plan)

Related Policies and Procedures

°  Staff Briefing

Pre opening checks

Deployment

Venue opening

Observation points

Response teams

Monitoring spectator movement
Incident reporting

Dealing with anti social behaviour
Ejection of spectators

Evacuation of public (See separate Evacuation Plan)

Incident Response Plans

Incident Response Plans will be used and directed by event control.

Event stop procedure

In the event of an emergency or need to stop the event, the venue Safety officer, Venue

Manager and Security Manager will agree on the process, timing and next steps. All
Functional Areas will have specific roles and responsibilities in this instance.

Evacuation Messages
Pre-agreed messages will be delivered via the PA system or manually on the instruction
with the Venue Manager and security Manager.

Emergency Vehicle Access
Emergency Services Vehicles are able to access the venue via specific routes. (Refer to
Evacuation Plan).

Incident Support and Rebporting
Incident reporting will be maintained via the specific Venue Reports and made available
to incident investigation and responsible agencies.

Page 120



SECURITY AND STEWARDING DEPLOYMENT

Security Manager
To manage the integrity of the venue and the event and to report directly to the event
Manager and event Clients. Liaison with the Emergency services and Licensing officers.
- To ensure that staff are briefed in their duties and are aware of health & Safety related
aspects of the venue and that all Security and Stewards are aware of the Emergency
procedures.

Perimeter Security
To operate within the licensed areas of the venue, but outside the perimeter fence to
manage queues and the public on pathways., anti social behaviour and noise related
issues.
- To assist members of the public attending the event.
- To work within the Security licensing Act and display their SIA badge at all times.
- To assist a police officer as and when applicable.
- To take details of any persons causing any damage to the property and forward to the
Event Control Room.
- To act as an external response team and be at the disposal of the Event Control
during their working hours.
- To monitor for congestion and relay information to event control.
- To ‘soft ticket’ check the public before they enter the venue.
- Random search if required.

DEPLOYMENT:

Currently in draft form, the deployment will be developed as the event progresses
Roles and Responsibilities - See Event Plan

Communication: -

Radios will be used on all prominent positions manned by security and stewards. An
event control room will be established for communication throughout the event for
command and control.

Security control will have communications with all agencies on back to back systems.
Steve Bettesworth

Director

SB Security Solutions Itd.

(An SIA Approved Contractor)

Page 121



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 122



	Agenda
	4 REPORT OF THE CLERK
	5 REPORT OF THE LICENSING OFFICER
	Event Plan


